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Mission 
The vision of 
Ngati Porou 
will be achieved 
through affirming 
the Matauranga 
Ngati Porou and 
its application to 
cultural, economic, 
environmental 

Over-arching principles based on 
Ngati Porou quadruple bottom line:
Cultural relevance and revitalisation

Economic growth and prosperity
Environmental sustainability

Social responsiveness and responsibility.

Vision 
Mana Motuhake Ngati Porou Nga Uri Whakatipu
Ngati Porou Self-Determining for 
the future

Beneficiaries
Nga uri o nga 
hapu o Ngati 
Porou mai i 

Potikirua ki Te Toka a Taiau
“the descendants of the hapu of Ngati Porou 

from Potikirua to Te Toka a Taiau”.
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Ngati Porou, tena tatau i o tatau mate huhua e whakangaro atu nei ki te po. Kei te 
tangi atu hoki ki tera o o tatau morehu kuia ki a Mate Kaiwai, tera o nga ringa awhi i 
to tatau Ngati Poroutanga. Kei te tangi atu hoki ki a Makere Kaa, me te tokomaha o 
ratau kua moe nei i te moenga roa. Kia koutou, haere! Haere! Haere! Kia tatau ki nga 
morehu tena tatau. Tenei te tukua atu te ripoata a TRONP mo te tau ka hori ake nei 
kia marama ai koutou ki nga mahi e mahia ana.

Welcome to the 2008/09 Annual Report for Te Runanga o Ngati Porou (TRONP).  

In 2009 we are able to look back on our efforts and the substantial gains that we 
have made.  The year opened with an exhaustive series of meetings around Ngati 
Porou Historical Treaty Settlements Negotiations and Foreshore and Seabed (FSSB) 
Ratification.   

Negotiating Treaty Claims
The Runanga Board of Trustees appointed three representatives to the Ngati 
Porou Historical Treaty Settlements Negotiations Sub-committee along with seven 
representatives voted in by marae and hapu clusters. The negotiation group, Te 
Haeata, is a strong team with a wide range of skills that in the past year has negotiated 
two high level agreements with Crown representatives.  Getting to this point has 
involved vigorous debate and negotiation, numerous and extensive meetings, as 
well as several consultation hui with Ngati Porou hapu and taura here.  You will find 
coverage of a host of activities undertaken by the group in the Te Haeata report.  We 
look forward to ratifying a Deed of Settlement with Ngati Porou followed by signing 
and parliamentary enactment in 2010.

As part of the negotiations, a Ngati Porou approved post-settlement governance entity (PSGE) has to be established to receive 
and manage the assets arising from the settlement. TRONP does not assume that it will morph into the PSGE.  That is a decision 
for Ngati Porou. Whatever PSGE we end up with there must be improved accountability back to our constituents.

It is interesting to note that we have been in direct negotiations for no less than three years, but in this short time progress is 
being achieved in some areas and more negotiations needed in others. Compared to other iwi, we are not doing too badly.

Foreshore and Seabed
A series of consultation hui with hapu within the Ngati Porou rohe was held to seek ratification for the Deed of Agreement 
signed between TRONP and the Attorney-General in August 2008.  Two months later sixty-eight people on behalf of forty-eight 
hapu ratified the Deed when they went to parliament and signed in support.  In the Nga Hapu o Ngati Porou FSSB Agreement 
the Crown acknowledges that the mana of the hapu of Ngati Porou is unbroken, inalienable and enduring in relation to the 
Foreshore and Seabed.  Through the Deed, the Crown recognises the unique relationship our hapu have with the foreshore 
and seabed.  TRONP has appointed a committee to work with hapu so that hapu can take on the management of the foreshore 
and seabed.

Other Activities
TRONP undertook a number of 
assessments to identify where cost 
efficiencies could be enacted in 
the organisation.  These have been 
gradually implemented.  The Chief 
Executive’s report on the activities 
carried out by the different arms 
of the organisation reveal a wide-
range of services that are enhancing 
the long-term health and well-
being of whanau, hapu and marae.  
Such outputs are made possible 
by a dedicated, talented and hard 
working team of staff.  Their efforts 
over the last year, despite the 
changes and uncertainty around 
the organisation’s future, to ensure  
TRONP is a valued organisation for 
our communities and Ngati Porou 
people alike, are applauded.

Board of Trustees chairman
Dr Apirana Mahuika

Selwyn Parata (Deputy Chair) speaks on behalf of Nga Hapu o Ngati Porou 
at signing of FSSB Agreement.
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Significant Changes
Mid-year we said goodbye to our CEO Amohaere Houkamau who took up a position 
in the parliamentary office of the Minister of Finance.  In her thirteen years as CEO 
Amo gave much to the growth and development of TRONP and I thank her for her 
dedication.  In February, we welcomed Dr Monty Soutar as our new CEO.  He came 
to us from the Tairawhiti Museum, where he was director, and previous to that from 
Massey University where he was a senior lecturer. In March, our Board secretary, 
Anne Manuel, left us and in her we lost a loyal and committed member of staff.  

Sadly, we farewelled trustee Bill Irwin and staff member Maud Johnson.  They 
passed away in February and March respectively.  Bill always made an important 
contribution to board discussions and he will be missed.  Maud had transferred 
from Whanau Oranga to Corporate Services where she was developing a key role 
in the finance team.

The advice, support and input of all Board members has been of great value this 
year and it gives me pleasure to record my thanks to them.  I wish to express my 
appreciation for the work of all trustees of TRONP over the past year and in particular, 
my expressions of gratitude on behalf of the Board to those outgoing trustees who 
contributed so much to the development of TRONP.

I wish also to convey my gratitude to our staff for their commitment to TRONP and 
the tribe. Of course, one cannot and must not overlook the work carried out by 
our different organisations such as fisheries and farming. We continue to support 
them and their contribution to employment and economic input for the tribe going 
forward. Finally to members of Te Haeata – thank you for your pursuit of our Treaty 
claims that will grow our people in the future.

Much has been achieved and more to come.

A T Mahuika

Highlights 2008-09
July 2008

Charities Commision grant •	
PAT and TRONP Group 
charitable status
Refreshed website re-launched•	

September 2008
TRONP Birthday celebrated•	
Fifth Te Rangitawaea ICT •	
Festival

October 2008
Te Haeata reach first high •	
level agreement with Crown
Nga Hapu o Ngati Porou & •	
Crown sign FSSB Deed of 
Agreement
Support launch of Nga Tama •	
Toa:  The Price of Citizenship

November 2008
Hui-a-Tau held at •	
Hinemaurea ki Mangatuna

January 2009
Pa Wars held at Uawa•	
Farewell function to CE •	

Feburary 2009
New CE appointed•	
Iwi leaders hui at Waitangi•	

June 2009
Te Haeata reach second high •	
level agreement with Crown

Our Year in Review
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Kia ora tatau nga uri a Hamo te rangi . Me mataara ka tika nga kaitiaki  a to tatau Runanga , te taonga a te Iwi. No reira ma enei 
kaupapa  e u ai te mauri a iwi a NgatiPorou e whakaatu mai nei i roto i tona pepeha “Ko Hikurangi te Maunga, Ko Waiapu te 
awa, Ko Ngati Porou te iwi.”

The Board met nine times during the year and the key priorities on which it focused are covered below.  

Elections
Te Runanga o Ngati Porou Board of Trustees (TRONP BOT) elections were held in November 2008.  Twenty nominated candidates 
stood to be elected and the names and photos of the seventeen successful candidates appear on the last page of this booklet.   
At its December meeting the TRONP BOT said goodbye to five outgoing trustees: Rawiri Tuhiwai-Ruru, Gordon Aston, Taina 
Ngarimu, Boydie Kirikiri and Dr Koro Dewes.  These trustees made a valuable contribution to Ngati Porou during their time as 
Board members.  They inspired robust debates and the remaining trustees know that their input will continue beyond their 
membership on the Board.  Dr Dewes was later voted Whakaruruhau of TRONP in view of his long-service as a trustee.

Treaty Settlement Negotiations 
At the end of the previous financial year the TRONP BOT appointed three representatives to the Ngati Porou Historical Treaty 
Settlement Negotiations Sub-committee (Te Haeata) along with seven representatives voted in by marae and hapu clusters.

TRONP representative:   Herewini Te Koha
TRONP representative (Lead Negotiator) Robert McLeod
TRONP representative:   Whaimutu Dewes
Hapu Cluster 1 (Potikirua ki Whangaokena) Rei Kohere
Hapu Cluster 2 (Whangaokena ki Waiapu) Dr Apirana Mahuika
Hapu Cluster 3 (Pohautea ki Onepoto)  Ned Ihaka
Hapu Cluster 4 (Reporua ki Rahui Manuka) Professor Linda Smith
Hapu Cluster 5 (Rahui Manuka ki Mataahu) Selwyn Parata
Hapu Cluster 6 (Mataahu ki Kokoronui) Koromatai (Kody) Pewhairangi
Hapu Cluster 7 (Kokoronui ki Toka-a-Taiau) Te Okeroa (Jock) Walker

Legal representatives Matanuku Mahuika and James Johnston were made members of Te Haeata executive as well as Mahanga 
Maru / later Teepa Wawatai and the Chief Executive (CE) of TRONP. Matanuku was also co-opted as a negotiator. While TRONP 
BOT has the final say on Ngati Porou Treaty negotiations it vested authority to negotiate in the Te Haeata sub-committee.  The 
committee is required to report to the Board at each of its meetings.  
 
Foreshore & Seabed Negotiations
On 31 October, Nga Hapu o Ngati Porou and the Crown signed the Foreshore & Seabed Deed of Agreement.  Then the Foreshore 
and Seabed Act was reviewed. The National Government said the Deed would be honoured, whatever the findings of the review. 
So in April, TRONP BOT appointed a committee to work with hapu to implement the Deed and ready themselves to use the 
instruments in the Deed.  Known as the Foreshore and Seabed Committee (FSC) the appointments are: Rei Kohere (Chairman), 
Wi Pewhairangi Walker, Taina Ngarimu, Koromatai Pewhairangi, Hera Ngata-Gibson, Agnes Walker and Mihi Kutia.  It is uplifting 
to see hapu working together to ensure that the mana of our foreshore and seabed remains with hapu and whanau.  

Chief Executive (CE) Recruitment
We would like to record our gratitude to Amohaere Houkamau who served the TRONP BOT through many years and changes.  
With her departure to assume a new position as a senior ministerial advisor to the Deputy Prime Minister the Board turned 
its attention to the appointment of the new CE.  A sub-committee made up of five board members was appointed before 
Christmas to oversee the recruitment process.  The committee engaged a recruitment agency, short listed candidates and 
undertook the interview process.  In February we were pleased to appoint Dr Monty Soutar to the role.

Other Activities
TRONP BOT through its Audit, Risk and Finance Committee, regularly monitored the financial progress of TRONP while also 
engaging Ernst & Young to identify and rate governance, management and operational risks across the TRONP Group.  The 
Board also received reports on the performance of the Pakihiroa Farms Ltd, commissioned a due diligence report on a major 
wind farm proposal for the East Coast, spent a number of sessions planning for the future of the waka Te Aio-o-Nukutaimemeha, 
worked with management to produce a new strategic plan and supported a number of Ngati Porou individuals and groups, 
events and activities through sponsorship. 

Through the chairman TRONP BOT also had input into the Iwi Leaders Forum where our views have been expressed on 
important matters such as the Emissions Trading Scheme and the Foreshore and Seabed Review.  

Finally, there is more efficiency around how TRONP BOT meets with the number of meetings reduced and the TRONP and PAT 
Boards meeting on the same day wherever possible. This has occured in a context of a new Board, new management and the 
current `economic reality’ where governance has had to lead reduction in costs across the organisation.

Our Year in Review
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Te Haeata Sub-Committee of Te Runanga o Ngati Porou
Introduction
In April 2008 the Crown accepted Te Runanga o Ngati Porou Deed of Mandate to 
negotiate the settlement of all historical Treaty claims for Ngati Porou by direct 
negotiation with the Crown.  Te Haeata Sub-committee was appointed in the same 
month; the organisation was established in June 2008 and negotiations with the 
Crown commenced a month later in July.

Timeline
There are five phases in Ngati Porou’s settlement negotiations process with 
the Crown and this timeline has been revised several times since negotiations 
commenced.  We are currently in Phase 3.

Negotiation Progress
It has been an eventful thirteen month period to 30 June 2009 in which two major 
high level agreements were negotiated with the Crown in progress toward a final 
Settlement package for Ngati Porou.  Throughout this time Te Haeata has strongly 
voiced its disagreement concerning the Crown’s formula for setting redress 
parameters for settlements as they apply to iwi generally and to Ngati Porou 
specifically, particularly around the nature and extent of land loss and subsequent 
cash reparation; and the Crown’s view of equity - in relation to settlements with 
other iwi.  These are major issues, the cause of ongoing dissatisfaction and have 
frustrated progress towards milestone agreements achieved thus far.  All of 
this transpired within a broader context of a general election and a change of 
government, the economic recession and an increasing level of distraction from 
the Waitangi Tribunal.  During this intense period the Negotiation sub-committee 
of Te Haeata held 22 negotiation meetings with the Crown, to advance settlement 
dialogue towards a draft Deed.  Other Te Haeata sub-committees, formed to feed 
into and support the negotiation process, held a further 15 meetings with the 
Crown, and numerous other preparatory meetings.

Agreements and Process
Both High Level Agreements can be viewed on the Te Haeata website www.
tehaeata.co.nz.  (Note: The Second High Level Agreement is included on page 
71 of this report).  The first agreement signed in October 2008 set out broad 
agreements on cash and property, and other commitments to further negotiations 
around elements of commercial and 
cultural redress and consideration 
of infrastructure improvements 
as a separate matter for parallel 
advancement.  The second high level 
agreement signed in June 2009 built 
on the first agreement.  One of the 
features of the second agreement 
was the Ngati Porou vision and 
cultural framework - an appropriate 
setting for the final settlement to 
be negotiated and recorded.  The 
agreement sets out the progress 
and the process used to reach this 
milestone.  That process involved the 
presentation by Te Haeata of many 

Phase 1 High Level Agreement 1  October 2008

Phase 2 High Level Agreement 2 June 2009

Phase 3 Initialled Deed of Settlement  March 2010

Phase 4 Ratification with Ngati Porou followed by

Signing of Deed of Settlement

 April 2010

May 2010

Phase 5 Legislation – Bill passed  June 2010

Te Haeata Sub Committee members
Back (left to  right): Rei Kohere, Selwyn Parata, Whai Dewes, 

Ned Ihaka, Matanuku Mahuika, Herewini Te Koha
Front (left to right): Kody Pewhairangi, Robert McLeod,

Dr Apirana Mahuika
Absent: Te Okeroa (Jock) Walker, Professor Linda Smith

www.tehaeata.co.nz

Professor Linda Smith leads Te Haeata 
consultation hui, Ngata College, Ruatoria.
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redress proposals categorized under commercial redress, cultural redress, post-
settlement governance entity, infrastructure and reparation.  Most of the proposals 
are in the area of cultural redress.  Some are very ambitious, pushing the boundaries 
of current Crown policy on Treaty settlements, especially concerning the future of 
Conservation lands in the rohe of Ngati Porou.  There are other proposals that are 
similarly complex and challenging to current government policy.  Inevitably, this has 
caused delays while the Crown has considered the precedential impact of Ngati 
Porou’s redress proposals.
 
Communication and Mandate
Te Haeata is conscious that mandate carries with it a need to provide opportunity 
for Ngati Porou to have input into the process and for Te Haeata to provide feedback 
on the progress of negotiations.  

In addition to face to face hui, Te Haeata has developed an informative and interactive website (www.tehaeata.co.nz) where 
Ngati Porou can access current information on settlement negotiations and provide input through surveys.  Over 3,000 people 
are registered to receive fortnightly electronic newsletters.  The website has been promoted through a successful radio and 
television advertising campaign.

Income/Funding & Expenditure
Ngati Porou’s settlement negotiations are totally funded by the Crown Forestry Rental Trust (CFRT) and the Office of Treaty 
Settlements (OTS).  Like all other iwi claimants funding is provided to Te Haeata based on an approved business plan and 
achievement of specific milestones.  

During the year Te Haeata received funding from the CFRT and the OTS to cover all of its expenses for the first two phases of 
the negotiation process.  The third phase of the negotiations is currently under way and some expenses (i.e $76,535) have been 
incurred at balance date to which funding has yet to be allocated.  The funding has since been received and will be recorded in 
the 2009/10 financial year.  At the end of the third phase, it is anticipated that sufficient funding will have been received from 
both CFRT and OTS to cover all of the phase three expenses.   

 Key Activities & Events Date

1 Te Haeata sub-committee members appointed Apr-08

   7 reps selected by hapu clusters  

   3 reps selected by TRONP  

2 Te Haeata briefed by the Crown on the Treaty Settlements Process Jun-08

3 Risk Management Plan developed Jun-08

4 Commenced regular cluster hui through cluster reps Jun-08

5 Commenced negotiations with the Crown Jul-08

6 Project Manager appointed Jul-08

7 Communications strategy and plan developed Aug-08

8 Commenced Taura Here information sharing hui Sep-08

9 First High Level Agreement signed (HLA1) 28-Oct-08

10 Commence Taura Here info sharing hui for HLA1 Oct-08

11 General Election - Change of Government Nov-08

12 High Level Agreement mailed out to Ngati Porou Nov-08

13 Commenced hapu cluster hui on HLA1 Nov-08

14 Minister Finlayson visit to Ngati Porou Jan 09

15 Commenced negotiations on a Second High Level Agreement (HLA2) Jan 09

16 Te Haeata’s first television advertisements screened on Waitangi day Feb-09

17 Commenced hapu cluster hui on input to HLA2 Feb-09

18 Commenced Ngati Porou Wananga on input to HLA2 Feb-09

19 Developed main Cultural Redress priorities & proposals Apr-09

20 Content for HLA2 agreed May-09

21 Second High Level Agreement signed 2-Jun-09

Consultation with Ngati Porou Meetings

Hapu Cluster Hui 53

Taurahere Information Sharing Hui 16

Wananga   3

Total 72

Income Summary Amount

Grant/Contract Income 2,142,504

Other Income 24,023

Total Income 2,166,527

Expenditure Summary

Meeting Expenses 74,359

Committee Fees 637,984

Travel & Accomodation 286,701

Legal Fees 62,892

Accounting Fees 230,604

Other Professional Fees 434,922

Communication Costs 327,061

Administration 150,000

Other Expenses 38,535

Total Expenditure 2,243,062.20

Net Loss 76,535

Agreements and Key Events 30 June 2009Further Update
In July 2009 the Crown and Te Haeata commenced 
negotiations on elements of a more complete settlement 
package, expanding on the content of the first two 
agreements.  The proposals were set out in a paper which  
Cabinet considered in August.  The Crown and Te Haeata 
are committed to ongoing negotiations to achieve a 
settlement package that can be ratified by Ngati Porou 
and enacted in legislation by the end of June 2010.

Te Haeata provided the following face to face 
consultation opportunities for Ngati Porou:

Te Haeata Expenditure Summary 
Year End June 2009
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Te Runanga O Ngati Porou

Haka Ruaumoko

Kaea:  Ko Ruaumoko e ngunguru nei! 

Katoa:  Au! Au! Aue ha!

Kaea:   Ko Ruaumoko e ngunguru nei!

Katoa:   Au! Au! Aue ha! 

Kaea:  Ahaha!

Katoa:   E ko te rakau a Tungawerewere! 
Ahaha! 
He rakau tapu na Tutaua ki a Uenuku. 
I patukia ki te tipua ki o Rangitopeka, 
Pakaru te upoko o Rangitopeka, Patua 
ki waenganui o te tau ki Hikurangi, He 
toka whakairo e tu ake nei. 
He atua! He tangata! He atua! He tan-
gata, ho!

Kaea:  He atua, he atua, au Paretaitoko, 
Kia kitea au Paretaitoko te whare haun-
ga! 

Katoa:   Ahaha! Kia whakatete mai o rei, he 
kuri! Au!

Kaea:  Ahaha!
Na wai parehua taku hope kia whakaka 
te rangi Kia tare au! Hi!

Kaea:  He roha te kawau!

Katoa:  Hi

Kaea:   Kei te pou tara

Katoa:   Tu ka tete, ka tete! Tau ha! 

Kaea:   Ko komako, ko komako! 

Katoa:   E ko te hautapu e rite ki te kai na 
Matariki, Tapareireia koia tapa! 
Tapa konunua koiana tukua!
I aue hi! 

Kaea:   Ahaha

Katoa:  Ka tu te ihiihi ka tu te wanawana ki 
runga I te rangi e tu iho nei, tu iho nei, Hi!

Annual Report 2009



Tena tatau i o tatau mate maha kua hinga atu ra i nga marae o te Tairawhiti.  Tatau 
nga waihotanga iho o ratau ma tena tatau.

It is with some trepidation that I write this report knowing that I have only been 
with TRONP for the last third of the 2008/09 year.  Despite my limited institutional 
knowledge I have been able to draw from several informative reports about the 
performance of the organisation that the previous CE prepared for Board of Trustee 
meetings.  I am grateful for these.

The Runanga maintains an ambitious agenda of advocacy, service provision, asset 
retention, economic development and investment.   The bulk of our operational 
income (86% last year, 75% this year) comes from government contracts and there 
is little `fat’ in those.  Thus, the interest earned on investments and portions of the 
dividends received from our subsidiaries are essential if TRONP is to maintain its 
busy schedule.  Furthermore, strict adherence to its budget is fundamental to 
ensuring the organisation at the very least breaks even each year.

Operating Deficit
With these opening remarks in mind, TRONP finished the year with a $198,000 deficit 
(see page 37). Contributions to this deficit came from a range of things including 
a $76,535 loss by Te Haeata, a $40,000 accounting write-off of a loan to Te Whare 
Wananga o Ngati Porou and costs related to the Runanga’s day-to-day activities.  
Te Haeata (for which TRONP maintains `at-a-distance’ financial oversight) showed a 
loss because of timing differences.  See Te Haeata report on page 7 for explanation.

Priorities for 2008/09
In terms of our key performance targets listed in last year’s Annual Report the 
following have been accomplished.  The BOT elections were completed on time 
although the postal vote was an expensive exercise (as much as $100,000). This 
triennial cost enables every adult member of Ngati Porou, if they are registered 
on the TRONP database, to vote for their Runanga representitive. There are 29,504 
members on the database, 560 of whom enrolled in the past 12 months. The 
availablity of online voting will reduce the cost of elections significantly. In January, 
the Governor-General appointed the new BOT for a term of three years. 

The Knowledge Management Strategy was implemented.  This involved improved 
financial processes and procedures, designing a high level measurement model 
for data capture, revamping the website and its procedures, and reviewing the 
Runanga’s business process models.

In general, hapu clusters (established for the appointment of seven hapu cluster 
reps on the Porou Ariki Trust) are working in a collective manner, although they 
are still early in the process of forming as functional organisations.  Governance 
structures and processes have yet to be formalised and bedded down.  At best the 
Hapu Success Framework (HSF) project provided broad signals of hapu priorities 
in most, but not all, of the hapu clusters of Ngati Porou.  The HSF was adapted in a 
few instances for hapu/cluster planning purposes but has not been a key driver of 
hapu development and planning.  Hapu Cluster Coordinators were appointed in 
five of the seven clusters (note: all seven clusters were afforded this opportunity) 
and hapu were supported in preparing and progressing their Territorial Customary 
Rights applications as part of the Foreshore and Seabed Deed of Agreement. Finally, 
implementation of the Ngati Porou Matauranga – Ngati Porou Curriculum Project 
continues.  

Those priorities not accomplished include the restructure of the organisation. 
It was not thought wise to undertake consultation around the restructure of 
the Runanga until the shape of the Post-Settlement Governance Entity (PSGE) is 
known.  At year’s end Ngati Porou communities were yet to be consulted on their 
preferred model for the PSGE.  The Business Incubator was put on hold until the 
Foundation for Research Science and Technology (FRST) funded economic research 
and development strategy is completed.  

It should also be noted that our strategic plan was rewritten and can be viewed on 
the TRONP website ngatiporou.com.

Te Runanga o Ngati Porou CEO
Dr Monty Soutar

The Corporate Services team
Left to Right: Nikorima Thatcher, Makere Kaa, Tracy 

Thompson, Albie McFarlane, Sarah Pohatu, Dr Monty Soutar

Absent: Paul Thomas,

Our Year in Review
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Knowledge Management Strategy 
Last year there had been significant investment into a Knowledge Management 
Strategy for the organisation.  That investment continued this year with the 
implementation of the first set of Knowledge Management projects. The overall 
outcome for the strategy is to provide: 

for Ngati Porou — a clear understanding of what and how the Runanga •	
is providing benefit to the iwi, and what opportunities, knowledge and 
support is available for Ngati Porou to succeed as Ngati Porou;
for staff and immediate stakeholders — a clear understanding of their •	
roles and how they contribute to the organisation achieving its business 
objectives and outcomes for Ngati Porou, as well as having the business 
processes, information and knowledge to support them to achieve the 
best outcomes;
for CEO & management team — transparent control over business •	
processes that Te Runanga o Ngati Porou is operating and how each 
strategy and investment is contributing towards achievement of its 
outcomes;
for the Trust Board — full governance and oversight reporting against •	
pre-defined success indicators.

The consultants who developed the strategy prepared a Financial Process 
Procedure and Training Manual, which was intended to improve the organisation’s 
internal processes.  Aligned to this, in July 2008 a Business Services Manager (BSM) 
was appointed to head Corporate Services.  The BSM received a handover of the 
first phase of the Knowledge Management Strategy and was then in a position to 
provide management oversight for the finance team, the TRONP website, and to 
identify further efficiency gains and or improvements to operations.  There were 
a number of staff changes that impacted on the successful implementation of the 
Knowledge Management projects, the most significant being the departure of the 
CE in January and the BSM who resigned in June.  In spite of this, the strategy remains 
a valuable investment for the organisation going forward if properly adopted.

Integrated Ngati Porou Economic Research & Development Strategy
FRST has funded TRONP to develop a science, innovation and technology strategy. 
This funding was secured off the back of the work TRONP had undertaken around 
the Ngati Porou business incubator and TRONP’s partnership with the Ministry 
of Education through the E Tipu E Rea programme. Chris Insley was contracted 
to develop the strategy and he has been leading the project.  He is conducting a 
similar exercise for Turanganui a Kiwa, Ngati Awa and Te Whanau a Apanui.  Over the 
past year he has been engaging the leaders of the New Zealand science community 
and drawing information from them that will assist each iwi define what their 
short, medium and long-term (intergenerational) research needs will be.  TRONP, 
NPSG and PFL are providing governance, executive and operational support to the 
project. This is an exciting development as there is a clear intention from leaders in 
the science community to engage with Ngati Porou in long-term research projects 
that will enable our economic development programme.

Cost Efficiencies
This year the new Government announced a $9.3 billion deficit forecast to 2016.
The Runanga realised that unless there is a dramatic economic turnaround current 
belt-tightening will be maintained. To demonstrate governance’s own willingness 
to streamline its operation the TRONP and PAT Board’s agreed to have their meeting 
fees halved.

At the management level cost efficiencies were sought wherever possible. Telecom 
as our preferred communications provider, for example, was phased out in favour 
of Vodafone. The unique challenges of connection between remote office locations, 
particularly in a rural setting meant that Vodafone gave us distinct advantages.

Ngati Porou Claims Against The Crown
A strategic priority for Ngati Porou in the past year, and which continues this fiscal 

TRONP’s 21st Birthdayy
Left to Right: Hawea Mackey, Katarina (Pani) Haig and 

Munene Whangapirita cut the cake

Hui-a-tau, Mangatuna

Te Rangitawaea Information Technolgy 
(ICT) workshop.
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year, relates to the Foreshore and Seabed Deed of Agreement and its implementation 
as well as the Treaty negotiations around historical claims and the subsequent 
benefits that derive to Ngati Porou through of the settlement package.

The appointment of a new CE coupled with a new board provided an opportunity 
for the Runanga to take a fresh look at its relationship with those minority factions 
within Ngati Porou who for various reasons object to TRONP negotiating directly 
with the Crown to settle Ngati Porou’s historical claims.  The door has never been 
closed to claimant groups who wish to dialogue with TRONP over this matter and 
this year the CE and Chairman, on behalf of TRONP, met with those groups  who 
wanted such an opportunity. While some claimant groups are yet to be tested on 
mandate, reaching a settlement that has no dissenters is our preferred goal.  We may 
not agree with each other’s views, but dialogue outside of the courts and without 
lawyers will more likely lead to improved relationships and ultimately a united iwi.

Acknowledgements
 I wish to state my gratitude to the Board of Trustees for the confidence they had 
in appointing me to the position of CE earlier this year, and to the Chair for his 
continuing support — waihoki me ki kei te noho humarie au mo te awhina. I would 
also like to acknowledge the work of the previous CE to bring the Runanga to where 
it is today.  I have appreciated the Foreshore Seabed Committee for their perpetual 
enthusiasm around the implementation of the Deed of Agreement.  To our staff, 
who are often the frontline of the Runanga and who have to take whatever praise 
or criticism is heaped on the organisation, nga mihi nunui ki a koutou.  To the senior 
management team, ara, nga kaiwhakahaere tokotoru a Lil, a Anne, a Paul hoki, tena 
koutou.  Me te mihi hoki ki taku hekeretari ki a Sarah kua noho hei tuara moku.

Reports on the Whanau Oranga, Matauranga and Rawa arms of the organistation 
follows.

KEY STRATEGIES FOR FUTURE
A three year strategic plan for TRONP includes the following five key strategies. These strategies will strengthen the hapu and 
whanau of Ngati Porou to achieve our vision of successful hapu and a successful Ngati Porou.

Strategy 1: Mana Tangata
Capacity & Capability.
Building the capacity (people power) and capability (effectiveness) of our whanau and hapu to achieve Ngati Porou self 
governance and self reliance.

Strategy 2: Mana Tuku Iho – Ngati Poroutanga
Culturally Strong
Ngati Porou are practising, preserving, maintaining and promoting the ancestral heritage of Ngati Porou including te reo ake 
o Ngati Porou me ona tikanga.

Strategy 3: Mana Kaitiaki
Expansive Networks, Effective Representation
Enhance relationships at home and abroad with hapu, other iwi, government and non-government agencies. Represent 
Ngati Porou interests effectively and efficiently at all times.

Strategy 4: Mana Whenua
Realisation. Protecting and Enhancing our Environment
Ensuring the return, retention and protection of Ngati Porou taonga (whenua/takutai).

Strategy 5: Whakatipu Putea
Economically Strong
Pursuing commercial and non-commercial opportunities that enhance the economic well being of Ngati Porou while 
supporting whanau and hapu to achieve an optimum return on their assets and resources.

Ngati Porou Inter Marae Pa Wars
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Te Runanga O Ngati Porou

WHANAU ORANGA

Te Wiwi Nati

Karanga! karanga ra e te hoa!
Kua tae mai kia kite i o rongo,
E hau nei i te ra, i nga tau roa:
Na reira ka haere mai. 

Te Wiwi Nati o Porourangi
He iwi moke no Waiapu
No Whangaokena no Hikurangi
He Nati te Wiwi, he whanoke!
E haere ana ki te pakanga,
Ka peka mai nei ki te marae
Kia mihi, kia tangi, hei konei ra!
Te iwi hei konei ra!

He mea tito na Ta Apirana 
Ngata mo tetahi ropu hoia 
o Ngati Porou o te Pakanga 
Tuatahi.

Te Runanga o Ngati Porou
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Overview 
What a year!  National won the elections and we waited with bated breath to see 
what shape their social policies would take.  And then came the recession - but 
more on that later.  That’s what was happening on the national scene but here at 
home the Whanau Oranga team took this in their stride, and continued to focus on 
positive outcomes for the whanau/families that we work with.

So what did we do?
We provided services that responded to the immediate needs of whanau.  We 
ensured that where possible each service was accessible with staff traveling to 
them and not expecting them to come to us.  This was vital especially as most of 
the whanau we worked with were beneficiaries and more so when the recession 
hit!  Many have asked the question, what recession?  Admittedly, we are a people 
who are resilient, having adapted to many changes over the years, however, the 
recession did impact negatively on some.  Fortunately, through the support of our 
kaiawhina, many were able to have their immediate needs met.  

How did we do this?

We worked with whanau to achieve positive health, education and social •	
outcomes through our Tuhono Whanau/Family Start, Strengthening 
Families, Counselling, Te Whae Atawhai/Social Workers in Schools, 
Whanau Support, Restorative Justice and Truancy services
We invested $47k in wananga and programmes aimed at reducing the •	
incidence of whanau violence through the Hapu Social Services group 
We facilitated Home Ownership Education programmes with 124 •	
potential home owners
An additional 14 houses received urgent and essential repairs and a •	
retrofit at no cost to the homeowner.  Total financial investment this year 
was over $400k with the main repairs including replacing septic systems, 
electrical work and roofing.  This makes a total of 127 homes within Ngati 
Porou that are now healthier, safer and warmer
We provided emergency housing/short term accommodation for five •	
whanau and worked with Housing New Zealand Corporation to assist 
them move to permanent accommodation.
We helped 109 young people achieve their learner licenses•	
We ensured that young people were aware of the responsibilities of •	
being a licensed driver
We maintained our Child Restraint Programme to ensure that all Ngati •	
Porou whanau have access to a car seat through our buy, rent or loan 
scheme
We promoted the importance of ‘safety on our roads’ alongside other key •	
stakeholders  
We supported 240 individuals sort their financial issues •	
We ran budget education programmes to enable whanau to understand •	
and manage their finances  
We promoted healthier food choices at marae, Kohanga Reo and •	
schools
We worked alongside 19 young people at risk of offending, with nine •	
having either returned to school or enrolled in alternative education 
programme.

What else did we do?
We provided training opportunities for staff and developed a training package for 
our hapu/community volunteers to create workforce development opportunities 
for them in the Whanau Oranga arena.

Four staff are enrolled to complete a Diploma in Social Work, one is •	
completing a certificate in Health Science and another is completing a 
Diploma in Counselling
We began developing of a training package for hapu known as •	
Whakapakari, Whakaoho, Whanau or www.kete aimed at building hapu 
capability in the areas of detection, reduction of violence, rebuilding 
whanau and hapu care and protection capability

Community based learner license course.

Budgeting programme: giving away pre-
loved toys, Te Araroa 
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We began discussions with the Ministry of Education’s ‘Group Maori’ to •	
deliver the Te Atawhainga Pa Harakeke programme.

And to ensure that whanau oranga – wellbeing outcomes for Ngati Porou whanau 
remain at the forefront of everyone’s agenda we maintained involvement at a more 
strategic level by participating in several forums and working groups.  This was 
over and above the working relationships that we maintain with crown agencies 
including; Ministry of Social Development  (MSD), Ministry of Justice (MOJ), Child, 
Youth and Families Service (CYF’s), New Zealand Transport Agency (NZTA), Ministry 
of Health (MOH), Housing New Zealand Corporation (HNZC), Ministry of Education 
(MOE), and Accident Compensation Corporation (ACC). 

Tairawhiti Social Development forum•	
Youth Transition Services Steering Group•	
Te Kaiawhina Ahumahi – Industry Training Organisation for Social •	
Services
Family Start National Collective•	
Restorative Justice Aotearoa•	
Safe Tairawhiti Working Group•	
Tairawhiti District Health Board - Injury Prevention Strategy•	
Provided feedback on the Amendment to the Child Youth and Families •	
Act through the Tairawhiti Law Centre
Developed a Youth Offenders Reduction strategy •	
Developed Kainga Tupu – a road map to Ngati Porou housing•	
TAIN Management group•	
Strengthening Families Local Management Group – East Coast and •	
Gisborne
Healthier Homes Steering Committee.•	

And just for good measure, we provided financial support to several of our sport 
groups representing Ngati Porou/East Coast in recognition of the role that sport 
plays in encouraging our young people to strive to participate at a regional and 
national level.  

These groups included:

East Coast Boxing Club•	
East Coast Tae Kwon Do•	
East Coast Basketball•	
East Coast Netball•	
East Coast Hip Hop•	

On reflection:
While 124 participants completed the Home Ownership Education programme this 
was short of our anticipated target of 150.  There were two factors that contributed 
to this result.  First, the resignation of the Housing Coordinator. Second, 95% of 
Coast based whanau will build on land in multiple ownership and HNZC, through 
Papakainga lending,  is the only organisation that will lend on multiple owned land.  
This year the Papakainga fund was expended quite early in the piece and while this 
was not an issue for our urban kin, the recession meant banks went from asking for 
a 5% deposit to a massive 20% deposit.

Nevertheless, with the lessons learned and our 14 years experience in housing 
services we are doing all we can to work with Housing New Zealand Corporation 
and other crown agencies to improve housing outcomes in Ngati Porou.  We ended 
this year by developing ‘He Kainga Tupu’  a road map to Ngati Porou housing which 
will provide the platform for future housing initiatives. 

Mayor Meng Foon cooking healthy lunch 
for TRONP staff as part of Nati & Healthy 

programme, Whangara marae.

Mary Anne Crawford (Te Whae Atawhai) 
and Anne Huriwai (Kaiwhakahaere 

Whanau Oranga)
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Tuhono Whanau/Family Start
We have five kaiawhina and a supervisor who work with up to 90 whanau/families in Gisborne whose social and whanau 
circumstances may put at risk good health, education and welfare outcomes for children.  While the focus is on the children, 
the team provide intensive home visiting and work with the whanau to build their strength and capacity to ensure that their 
children have the best possible start in life.  Whanau can be referred to Tuhono Whanau from the time mum is three months 
pregnant up until baby is 12 months of age.  The kaiawhina will then work with the whanau until the child is 3 years of age. A 
whanau may be involved with many different agencies and the kaiawhina acts as an advocate and coordinator between the 
agencies to ensure that the whanau priorities are met.

Each year the kaiawhina hold a graduation (which is a bit of a do!) for the whanau that they have worked alongside and 
supported for three years.  Here is an example of a successful outcome for one whanau.

Registered on the 22 May 2006; graduating three years later.  The referral came from the midwife and the kaiawhina recalls 
the high needs that this whanau initially presented.  The teenage parent had limited support (Mum’s whanau did not reside 
locally and Dad’s whanau provided minimal support) with a family history of abuse, low income and limited education.  
Through the support of the kaiawhina this young mum was linked to Turanga Health Ante-Natal, Te Whare Whai Hua (teen 
parent school), Housing New Zealand Corporation and the Family Court (Protection Order).  Three years on the young mum 
now has: 

strong whanau support from maternal whanau•	
her tamaiti is enrolled in Kohanga Reo•	
an ability to deal with social services independently of Tuhono Whanau•	
advocates her needs with her partner and his whanau•	
has accessed all health care services for her tamaiti including immunization, oral health, general practitioner•	
completed 32 of a possible 36 early childhood development sessions with her Tuhono Whanau kaiawhina.•	

The home of this whanau is now child focused, happier, safer and is a healthier environment for all.  

Te Whae Atawhai
Te Whae Atawhai is the name that has been adopted for the Social Workers in Schools 
programme.  We have had the programme since 1999 when TRONP contracted with 
Child Youth and Families (CYF).  The name refers to a mature woman who provides 
nurturing and support to whanau much like the objective of the programme – to 
look after and assist tamariki and their whanau to deal with health, education and 
welfare issues that affect a child’s ability to learn.

Initially the programme was aligned to Whaia te Iti Kahurangi: Improving Education 
in Ngati Porou/East Coast Schools and the East Coast Strengthening Families 
initiatives.  TRONP’s objective was to “improve our children’s ability to learn and excel 
in our schools, by lessening the barriers to learning like unexplained absenteeism.”  

Ten years later this is still the goal – to reduce the obstacles unnecessarily impeding 
our children’s learning.  This year the CYF contract was reviewed and heavily 
amended.  The focus now is on the relationships between the schools, Te Whae 
Atawhai and TRONP as well as service delivery. In the past, supervision has been 
provided by an in-house supervisor who was required to oversee all social work 
based programmes.  Te Whae Atawhai is seen as such a crucial programme that we 
felt it was necessary to appoint a Kaitataki whose key focus is Te Whae Atawhai.  

Riria (Lillybell) Fox, from the Kawhia whanau, was appointed to the position.  She 
qualified with a diploma in Social Work in 2007.  Her role is one that requires 
experience and maturity to be able to sit with staff, hear their casework, understand 
what the issues are and then advise/support in the most effective way to ensure 
that the staff member continues to provide high quality service to the tamaiti and 
their whanau.  

Relationships are the key in the successful outcome of any Runanga service.  
With each year people change and roles change making the maintenance of 
relationships an ongoing challenge.  The geographical spread of our schools adds 
to the challenge but our intent is always to provide a valued service.
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MATAURANGA

Te Takapau a Maui Tikitiki a 
Taranga  
 
Te uri Ariki  e Porou E!
Areare mai ki te takahi a Tamoa Rapara-
paririki,
Tapuaeroa tuamaka te koro o Waiapu
 hoki atu koe ki Maunga Hikurangi 
e kore nei e nekeneke ki te kapehu  taka-
pau  te mana a Maui Tikitiki a Taranga.

Pou Tahi!
Tu ana koe i te ana o Murirangawhenua 
hamama kau ana te waha o Ruaumoko
toi ake ra ko te kaokao
kaitaka tohu matiti tohu matata.
 
Ka urua!
Ma konei taku waka he waka haurua ti-
pare taua 
Horouta wananga Nukutere tangata nga 
kakahi whakairoiro o te moana 
e huri e huri tirohura ake ra ko te whetu 
matarau korikoriko mai ra 
Ko te huinga o Matariki korakorako atu 
ra.

Pou rua!
Ma nehe Maui to tira haere i a Hinerau-
maukuku 
kai karangaranga i te po i te ao 
te ha to haemata te ia Waiatarau 
kia korerotia nga tai hukahuka o Tanga-
roa.

Pou toru! 
E huri koe ki te pu o te tonga 
kia maunga Aorangi Ngai Tahu Potiki 
te poutokowananga a kui Muriran-
gawhenua 
tipuna o pukauwae runga pukauwae 
raro.

Pou wha!
Tiro hura ake ra ki te waka o Ranginui kia 
tohia ake ki te tohi nuku tohi rangi
 kia titireia iho ki te rau o te Toroa te huia 
nga tohu a Hineruru 
kia unu ra koe ki te puna a Tinirau
 te Urunga tapu a Paikea.

Pou rima!
Angiangi mai ra ko te ao kapua 
koia te takarangi o te taurapa 
nga Rauru nui 
o Whakataupotiki.

Pou ono!
Huri pohoi ki te ahurewa, 
ki te pukenga,ki te wananga, 
ko Irawhaki te kai hihiri o te ra 
te Urunga tu te Urunga pae.
 
Pou whitu!
Kia rehu ki te hunga wairua ki Te Hiku o 

Te Ika
 ki a Aria ki te umu Kokako tangi huahua 
ki taumata wahine ko Houku tangi hua-
hua ki taumata tane ko Taikehu 
kia ruruku te waiariki o Hinetakawhiti kia 
tau ki Houmu te hirea o te waha o Maui 
tuturu te tomokanga ki Te Reinga kia Hine 
nui i te po.

Pou waru!
Na ra ko    Atamira te waka, 
ko Hotutaihirangi,
ko Taiopuapua, koTe Raro tua maheni,
ko te Aio o Nukutaimemeha.

Pou iwa!
Pou tipu pourea Tama i waho
me here ki te here o Matukutangotango 
Pou mua pou roto pou muri 
Maui Potiki to kai E!

na Kuini Moehau Reedy
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Beneficiary Database
A recent upgrade to the online Ngati 
Porou database includes a new 
look, enhancements and functions 
to make it more productive and  
friendly for both the users and the 
administrator.  This work has been 
completed by Hamilton based 
company Enlighten Designs. This is a 
great tool and to keep up with the 
times and it now has the capabilities 
to text beneficiaries (uri).

During the year, the Ngati Porou 
database has increased by an 
average of 80 registrations per 
month. That’s a 25% increase on last 
year’s registrations. At the end of 
June 2009 about 29,000 Ngati Porou 
whanau were registered. About 4800 
registrations came from the Maori 
Affiliation Service, Tuhono. 

Ngati Porou whanau are encouraged 
to register so they can keep up with 
Ngati Porou developments and  
take part in the implementation 
of the Foreshore & Seabed Deed 
of Settlement and the Treaty 
negotiations.

There are several ways you can 
register:

Online at www.ngatiporou.•	
iwi.nz/signup
Download a registration form •	
from the website
Request registration forms •	
from TRONP and they will be 
posted out.

If you have any queries regarding 
registration or the database, please 
contact Hiria Shaw on (06) 864 9004 
ext 730 or via email hshaw@tronp.
org.nz. 

Co-Production Model and Relationship
Background 
Co-production came into vogue in the past two years in Te Puni Kokiri (TPK) as a 
way for Government to partner with iwi providers (or ‘co-producers’) in delivering 
long-term programmes that are effective in achieving real outcomes for Maori. It is 
a 3 year programme finishing in June 2010.

Co-production was born out of the need for Government to reach a minority or 
alienated sector of the community, where conventional approaches to policy 
development and programme delivery fail. The approach consists of getting 
the targeted sector involved in planning and programmes fostering their own 
development and heeding their ideas on what works and what doesn’t. 

Although TRONP saw co-production as an opportunity to fund major programmes 
for Ngati Porou,  we were also keen to influence government policy. 

Acheivements

TRONP has received long term funding for multi-faceted outcomes•	
There is a much stronger relationship between Te Puni Kokiri regional •	
staff, policy staff and TRONP
Funding cluster co-ordinators•	
Developed a Knowledge Management Strategy for TRONP.•	

Te Rangitawaea
An inspiring korero by a Hollywood director 
and the introduction of a live internet broadcast 
were some of the highlights from the 2008 Te 
Rangitawaea Festival. The annual event celebrates 
the ICT (Information Communication Technology) 
achievements of students from eighteen Ngati 
Porou East Coast kura. The festival also provides 
a platform to showcase the latest in cutting edge 
technology, innovation, and creativity from our 
talented rangatahi. 

Nati Putaiao( Nati Science) was the theme for the 
2008 event held in Ruatoria.  Students created films, 
animations, music, and other digital media to reflect 
this theme. The festival incorporated an interactive 

expo, mystery ICT Team Challenge and guest speaker workshop featuring  film-
maker Lee Tamahori and television personality Matai Smith. The Oscar-like Nati 
Awards ceremony in the evening provided another platform to showcase the 
technological competence and confidence of the students. 

563 digital media entries were received from schools and only the best three from each section was shown on the evening. 
The ceremony was also  broadcast live online for the first time in the festival’s four year history to a potentially global audience. 
The event is a major focus of the Te Rangitawaea ICT strategy, a sub-project of E Tipu E Rea (ETER), which is a TRONP/Ministry of 
Education partnership programme for schooling improvement. The aim of the strategy is to integrate ICT in all curriculum areas 
and its vision is to maintain Ngati Porou East Coast schools at the forefront of education innovation in ICT. 

A series of twelve ICT workshops were also held to develop the students’ skill. 160 rangatahi and kaiako attended the workshops 
during May 2009, covering a range of digital media industries – film-making, music production, 3D animation and Web 2.0 sites. 
The tutors of the workshops not only shared a passion for their respective professions, but were also keen to pass on  industry 
knowledge and skills. Positive benefits from the workshops included networking with experienced professionals, learning 
industry tips & tricks and inspiring and motivating participants to continue to increase their ICT development and careers. 
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E Tipu E Rea (ETER)
The Raparapa Ririki Education Strategy

The Raparapa Ririki Education Strategy was established in consultation with Ngati Porou Kohanga & ECE centres from 2006-
2008.  The Strategy is looked after by the Raparapa Ririki Working Party, which is made up of representatives from the Centres, 
REAP Tairawhiti, MoE, and Ngati Porou Pakeke.
The Strategy has two main strands of work, Te Reo ake o Ngati Porou, and the Ngati Porou Qualifications Pathway.

Te Reo Ake o Ngati Porou
Purpose of this goal is to increase the use and improve the quality 
of Te Reo ake o Ngati Porou in Ngati Porou early child-hood 
learning centres. 

The Matua Ohomauri Project was launched on the 8th of May, 
2009 at Pakirikiri Marae, Tokomaru Bay.   Nanny Hera Gibson, the 
guest speaker and passionate advocate for Te Reo Maori, hoped 
that Matua Ohomauri would inspire parents and whanau to learn 
Te Reo Maori, hence the name of the project.  

From May to July, 16 Ngati Porou Learning Centres were visited 
and offered the opportunity to have Te Reo Maori classes.

The Matakaoa Reo Cluster, consisting of parents, whanau and 
kaimahi from three Centres got underway in late June 2009. Initial 
feedback has been promising with parents and whanau having 
an increased confidence to speak Maori.  The participating Centres have noticed that parents are more confident to speak 
Maori, and participate in karakia, mihimihi and waiata sessions.  

Two Centres in Te Riu o Waiapu, and four Centres in Ruatorea are organising their Reo Clusters to start in August and September 
2009.

Ngati Porou Qualifications Pathway
This pathway is designed to improve the quality of education provision in Ngati Porou early child-hood learning centres that 
provide educational services for tamariki aged 0-5years.

There is an urgency in Ngati Porou to support kaiako to become qualified.  In 2011 all Kohanga and ECE centres will need to 
have qualified kaiako to be eligible to receive funding.  The Raparapa Ririki Working Party has established a sub-committee to 
progress this kaupapa.

Computers In Homes
This project started in September 2007 when Te Runanga o Ngati Porou E Tipu E Rea programme secured funding to provide 
250 computers to whanau from 17 Learning Centres on the East Coast.

Computers in Homes helps schools to provide computers, internet access and computer training to families with school-
aged children who would otherwise not have access to these facilities.

Parents receive 20 hours of basic computer training including word processing, emailing and internet use. The training is 
held at their children’s school and is aimed at empowering parents to become actively involved in their children’s learning, as 
well as increasing their own employment opportunities and confidence. The programme supports the government’s focus 
on literacy and numeracy, as computers and the Internet are now viewed as basic tools for all New Zealanders.

From September 2009, 130 more Ngati Porou families will benefit from a further 
Government grant to the Computers in Homes programme. Training will be run 
through Ngati Porou East Coast Secondary Schools. For more details on the 
Computers in Homes programme in Ngati Porou, please contact:

Leeanne Morice
Te Runanga o Ngati Porou
1 Barry Avenue
RUATORIA
lmorice@tronp.org.nz
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RAWA 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

Me kimi i te ao nei
He wahi hei rite
Ki tou kainga tupu
E matea nuitia nei
Hei aha nga kino
Hei aha ona he
Ka tawhai te ngakau
Ko reira noho ai
 
Te kainga tupu
Te ai ona rite 
E kore e rite

 Ka haere ki mamao
Kei wareware koe
Te wa ki nga matua
E tangi atu nei
Te wa ki te kainga
E okioki ai
E tau ai te mauri
Ki reira noho ai.

Na Ta Apirana Ngata
Rangi: Home Sweet Home

Te Kainga Tupu
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Overview
This section of the report is divided into two parts to reflect the related but separate 
governance and management of:

Te Runanga o Ngati Porou and its subsidiary Pakihiroa Farms Ltd (PFL)      •	
Porou Ariki Trust and its subsidiaries, Ngati Porou Seafoods Ltd (NPSL), •	
Ngati Porou Fisheries Ltd (NPFL) and Real Fresh Ltd (RFL) which together 
form the Ngati  Porou Seafoods Group (NPSG).

Tourism
The past year has seen tourist numbers drop significantly aligning with the much 
talked about “recession”.  Tourist numbers were very high from December through 
to March with up to 20 visitors a day calling into the Ngati Porou Visitor centre. The 
large visitor numbers at the time had a flow on effect to local accommodation  and 
hospitality providers. 

April and the arrival of the winter weather seemed to drive away the visitors.
The development of the Ngati Porou Visitor Centre into a hub for local artists and 
accommodation/tour providers has been a focus for the year.  Since its establishment 
we have worked towards becoming a key contact for visitors to Ngati Porou and 
also for returning Nati’s looking for information, T-shirts, or a piece of Ngati Porou 
artwork to take back to remind them of home. 

Another focus for Tourism has been to highlight Ngati Porou events that entice 
visitors to the region and also allow Ngati Porou to celebrate who we are in our very 
own unique way. The Ngati Porou Matariki Festival at Iritekura Marae, Waipiro Bay, 
which was well attended despite one of the harshest storms in recent times, shows 
how much these events are appreciated. 

The 2009 Hikurangi dawn ceremony was again very successful.  2010 is the 10th 
anniversary of erecting Te Takapau a Maui Tikitiki a Taranga. It is our intention to 
enhance the celebration with Ngati Porou performers entertaining at the dawn 
ceremony breakfast.

With lower visitor numbers impacting on the Hikurangi Tour packages we branched 
out to include personalised tour options for visitors aimed at the higher-end market 
client. Ngati Porou Tourism helped local providers establish new ventures from 
accommodation through to marae tours. The first tour was held at Awatere Marae, 
Te Araroa. 

Another focus for Ngati Porou Tourism has been to get “our own people on their 
mountain” working with schools to take their students to Hikurangi before they 
go snowboarding on Mt Ruapehu, and teaching our children their maunga korero 
before they learn about others.

Kite Making Winners, Iritekura Marae, Waipiro Bay
2009 Matariki Festival

Cleaning the Whakairo on Hikurangi 
maunga.

Example of artwork for sale in tourism 
shop
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Pakihiroa Farms Ltd (PFL)
Kia ora koutou, tatau te iwi whai paanga ki te Pakihiroa. Anei e rarangi nei te 
whakarapopototanga o nga  kaupapa ahuwhenua a te Pakihiroa me Puanga hei 
whakaarotanga ma koutou. Ma te kaha ma te tumanako ma te werawera e tutuki 
ai nga mahi nei, heoi ano ahakoa pehea ka mau tonu ki te korero tuku iho  “kaua e 
ngau ki te whenua”,  ko te maunga tapu tenei hei turangawaewae mo nga uri katoa 
o nga hapu o Ngati Porou mai i Potikirua ki Te Toka a Taiau.

Highlights in Brief
The company is pleased to report:

A surplus for the year of $126,797.  This is a significant improvement on •	
the 2008 result of $5,813.
The establishment of a 124 ha carbon sink forest joint venture with Iwi •	
Rakau.
A dividend of $40,000.•	

Market and Economic Conditions
Within the farm gate, pastoral farming is a risky and challenging business.  As 
witnessed in the last 2 years we are exposed to both climatic and market risks.  

PFL continues to evaluate all these risks, the affect they have on performance and 
where possible implement strategies to minimise them.

New on-farm information systems (Farmax) are being implemented to provide us 
with accurate up-to-date data on the farms in terms of feed levels, numbers and 
stock liveweights.  

We are able to objectively evaluate the risks associated with holding or selling 
stock.  

Where possible we forward sell product on a fixed price contracts to lock in margins.  
We also apply this principle to input costs.  Further development is required in this 
area.

Community Involvement 
Pakihiroa continues to participate in two projects co-funded by TRONP through the 
Tairawhiti Land Development Trust.  These projects are the Tapuaeroa Valley Project 
and Sheep for Profit. Both projects have provided useful reviews and critiquing of 
our farming operation.  The company is also pleased to be able to support various 
iwi hui.

Shareholder Returns
The improved financial result allowed PFL to declare a dividend of $40,000 paid to 
our shareholder TRONP.

In addition, PFL continues to pay its annual rental of $80,000.  We have also settled 
the outstanding rental obligation of $40,000 deferred in 2008.

Financial Overview
Gross Income was up at $945,361.  This result was achieved on the back of improved 
margins for sheep meats.  As well as better sheep prices, renewed farmer interest in 
this sector pushed up the value of stock on hand.

Expenditure levels were up on 2008 at $ $818,564.  Higher production costs (Animal 
Health, Wages and Supervision) and Repairs and Maintenance (Fencing) were the 
primary expense items.

This left the greatly improved surplus for the year of $126,797 — an adequate result 
for 2009. The company’s Financial Position improved by $81,714 to $3,311,750.  
Debt levels were slightly lower than 2008 at $1,103,401.  The value of livestock on 
the farm increased. Shareholder funds were improved to $2,208,349.

Some of the directors of Pakihiroa Farms Ltd
Left to right: Hilton Collier, Wi Mackey, Selwyn Parata

Station managers workshed , Puanga Station

Puanga Station

TRONP BOT visit to Pakihiroa Station
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Sheep Accounts
Sheep prices rallied after 3 years of drought, poor prices and a change in landuse into 
dairy and cropping.  Confidence in sheep farming has been renewed as profitability 
returned to this sector.

On both properties we were able to sell lamb at heavier weights and higher prices 
to improve our profit margins.  This saw our sheep account improve by almost 
$309,000 to $599,560.  

Average sheep sale prices improved by almost $23 per head to $80.15.  This 
compensated for the disappointing lambing result of 112%.   Sheep losses were 
6.4%  

Sheep numbers at closing were at 7,341 a reduction of 989.  This is reduction reflects 
the improved finishing and trading activities, and our preference to convert high 
value stock to cash.

World demand for lamb is remains strong.  Carcase cuts that have traditionally sold 
at a discount such as lamb flaps are attracting higher prices especially from Asia.  

We see further improvement in our sheep systems as we upgrade our flock 
genetics.

Cattle Accounts
The Cattle Accounts was down $18,294 on last year at $278,164.
  
Cattle margins slipped as we were obliged to sell store cattle from Puanga last 
spring.  This reflects the tight feed conditions experienced at the end to three years 
of drought.

Margins are expected to continue to be squeezed while the dairy sector kill surplus 
dairy cows in response to falling milk prices.

We have moved to further integrate Pakihiroa and Puanga beef systems.  Pakihiroa 
weaners are trucked to Puanga for finishing.  We have been able to finish some of 
these cattle at 18 to 20 months and will be looking to increase the numbers being 
killed before their second winter.

Cattle numbers at closing were 1,209 head, down 38 on opening.  Calving was 90 % 
with cattle losses of 2.6%. 

No dairy cattle were grazed due to demand for grazing drying up.

Wool
Returns were similar to 2008 at $67,637 from the sale of 34,566 kg.  The wool sector 
remains in poor shape as the value proposition of wool is damaged by sector self 

Farm Productivity KPIs PFL 2009 PFL 2008 PFL 2007 TRONP 2006 TRONP 2005 TRONP 2004

SHEEP

Lambing % 112.3 116 117 115 131 131

Lambs bred (docked) 5891 5800 5847 4635 4937 4393

Sheep losses % 6.4 4 7 12 2 3

CATTLE

Calving % 90 90 79 85 87 88

Calves bred 413 455 371 506 488 547

Cattle losses % 2.6 1 1 0.5 4 1
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interest. We have moved to forward selling much of our main shear clip 
to maximise returns. 

Expenditure
Costs increased as more intensive production practices were put in 
place.  This is the major reason for higher animal health costs.

Re-investment in the properties rose as the Board approved plans to 
address fencing needs on both properties.  Almost 7,200m of repairs 
were completed at Puanga.  For Pakihiroa about 6,200 m of new fencing 
and 7,700 m of repairs were carried out.  Fencing at Pakihiroa included 
our share of the boundary with Earnslaw.  In addition to this fencing, 
almost 2,400 m of fencing between Pakihiroa and our Iwi Rakau partners 
was erected by Iwi Rakau.

Funding for the higher level of fencing repairs was provided by re 
prioritising our fertiliser budget.

Other work completed includes painting the managers house and 
improving the cartilage at both Pakihiroa houses.  We have admired the 
gardening efforts of Luke’s wife Jane.

The main Pakihiroa track to the woolshed was reshaped, water tables 
cleared and metal applied.

At Puanga the road was graded, water tables cleared and re-metalled.     

Late in the year the Pakihiroa hilux was upgraded.

Management Team and Staffing
During the year the Board appointed Hilton Collier to succeed Lance 
Rickard as Farm Supervisor.  He continues to work closely with Luke 
Scragg on Pakihiroa and Wayne Akuhata Brown at Puanga.

Assisting Luke on Pakihiroa are shepherd, Cam Beechem, and fencer/
general Richard Stoddart.

Carbon Farm
We have 124 ha of “Carbon Farm” forest on Pakihiroa.  We have been able 
to address our overlay 3A obligations by planting these areas as well 
as achieve a financial return for the company.  After much deliberation 
the Directors have agreed to an upfront capital payment, an annual 
rental and a share of the value of any carbon traded.  After 30 years the 
ownership of the forest reverts to TRONP.

No tatau tenei kainga ma tatau ano e manaaki e tiaki i a ia, me ona 
korero  hei mau nga ringa ma nga uri whakatipu.
 
Kia tau te ia o te mauri kia tatau katoa.
 
Selwyn T Parata 
Chairman.

On behalf of the board of Directors 
Tate Pewhairangi, Koro Dewes, Wi Tawaho Mackey, Lance Rickard, Hilton 
Collier, William Burdett.

2009 2008 2007

Gross Farm Income

-Net income from sheep 599,560 290,670 130,249

-Net income from cattle 278,164 296,458 101,019

-Net income from wool 67,637 67,891 84,339

Grazing income 24,668

Total Gross Farm Income 945,361 679,687 315,607

Other Income ($2,614) $9,114

Expenditure

-Farm working 347,243 327,336 386,242

-Repairs & Maintenance 166,438 34,294 25,564

Standing Charges 29,240 24,304 24,082

-Administration 63,734 84,061 92,266

Total Expenditure 
Excluding Depreciation,
Interest & Lease 

606,655 469,995 528,154

Net Surplus/(loss)

Before depreciation & interest

338,706 207,078 $203,433

-Depreciation 33,195 29,865 28,464

-Interest 98,714 91,400 66,022

-Lease Pakihiroa Station 80,000 80,000 80,000

Net surplus/(deficit) for the year 126,797 5,813 (377,919)

Statement of Financial Performance 
For year ended 30 June 2009

2009 2008 2007

Equity 2,248,982 2,121,552 2,115,739

Current Liabilities

-Bank overdraft (16,906) 253,976 13,101

-Accounts payable 154,804 52,802 55,339

Related party Payables 4,213 48,482 10,111

-GST Payable 2,254 18,407 23,201

-Total Current Liabilities 863,223 373,667 101,752

Term Liabilities

-Shareholder Loan 34,817 34,817 34,817

-Bank Loan 211,657 700,000 700,000

Total Term Liabilities 246,474 734,817 734,817

Total Funds Employed 3,358,679 3,230,036 2,952,308

Assets

Account Receivable 7,125 52,337 11,700

Livestock 1,403,488 1,350,071 1,084,626

Property, plant & equipment 1,882,131 1,827,628 1,855,982

Total Assets 3,292,744 3,230,036 2,952,308

Statement of Financial Position 
As at 30 June 2009
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The Porou Ariki Trust was established by the Porou Ariki Trust deed, March 2006 
in accordance with the Maori Fisheries Act, 2005. The Trust comprises up to 27 
members (20 responsible & 7 advisory trustees) and the members are the board 
for the purposes of the Porou Ariki Deed 2006.  The role of the board is governance 
rather than management.  Governance focuses on the trust’s wider issues of 
organisational purpose, including the setting and monitoring of strategic direction, 
the establishment and monitoring of Board-level policies and strategic oversight of 
Ngati Porou Seafoods Group and its subsidiaries.

COST EFFICIENCIES
PAT had a surplus of $59,628 this year.  This was largely due to the reduction in 
the number of Board meetings.  Last year the PAT Board met seven times, whereas 
only five meetings were held this year.  When one considers it costs over $10,000 to 
bring the 27-member board together, it is not difficult to see why we were left with 
a profit.  Reducing the number of meetings also meant savings on administrative 
overheads, most notably in the area of salaries to the Board’s support staff. 

ANNUAL PLAN
In terms of performance against the annual business plan the following progress 
was made.

A communications strategy was implemented with the aim of ensuring Ngati Porou 
are well informed about PAT, its purpose and activities.  The Pitopito Korero quarterly 
newsletter is one of the regular written communications issued to marae and 
whanau.  Hapu Cluster Coordinators were offered to each of the seven Hapu Clusters 
and for those clusters that took up the offer their co-ordinators received training 
about the role, responsibilities and performance of PAT than might otherwise have 
been available.

The Charities Commission granted PAT and the TRONP Group charitable status 
effective from 30 June 2008.  NPFL has been registered as a member of the Group 
and therefore it, NPSL, and Real Fresh Limited all qualify for charitable status 
under the same terms.

Inshore fisheries assets have not been secured as forecast in the annual plan.  This 
is because coastline agreements with Te Whanau-a-Apanui, Te Aitanga-a-Mahaki 
and Rongowhakaata remain unresolved.  A discussion with representatives of 
our southern neighbours continues.  Te Ohu Kaimoana representatives are also 
assisting.  Te Whanau-a-Apanui are still in the process of confirming their Mandated 
Iwi Organisation (MIO) status and settlement is not possible until this occurs.

FORESHORE AND SEABED 
Last year two wananga were held with the ‘matimati maku’ practitioners of 
customary fisheries across our hapu to develop a Ngati Porou Customary Fisheries 
Framework and a Hapu Customary Fisheries Plan.   This initiative was overtaken by 
the Nga Hapu o Ngati Porou Foreshore and Seabed Deed of Agreement and in turn 
the review of the Foreshore and Seabed Act.  

The deed was negotiated to obtain better legal protection and recognition for the 
mana of our hapu in respect of the foreshore and seabed (excluding any areas held 
in private title) in our rohe, including customary fisheries.  Once the Government 
has made decisions about the review the Nga Rohe Moana o Nga Hapu o Ngati 

Key performance targets Status

Business Risk Assessments Completed

Confirm Coastline agreements with Te 

Whanau a Apanui, Te Aitanga a Mahaki 

and Rongowhakaata

Ongoing

Submit coastline claim to TOKM Incomplete 

due to above.  

Deferred to 

2009-10

Ngati Porou receive optimum annual 

dividend from our AFL income shares 

from 2009 onwards

Incomplete.  

AFL dividend 

forecast is now 

for 2010

Criticaly review TOKM and AFL’s 

performance conducted annually-

feedback provided as required.

Attended by 

two trustees 

and reported 

to PAT.  TOKM 

and AFL 

annual reports 

distributed

Charter and Governance handbook 

completed

Incomplete 

due to above.  

Deferred to 

2009-10

TRONP Trustee election process 

completed and full complement of 

Trustees appointed.

Completed

Retention of charitable tax status. Completed

PAT Strategic Plan reviewed against 

performance targets and updated.

Completed

PAT annually reviews its own 

Investment Policy and Profile and 

NPSG’s Investment Policy and Profile.

Completed

PAT Annual plan endorsed by PAT 

Board and annual budget approved.

Completed

Ngati Porou marae/hapu well 

informed about strategic intentions, 

objectives and performance of PAT 

and NPSG.

Completed

Ngati Porou Customary Fisheries 

Regulations developed and enshrined 

in FSSB Legislation

Ongoing

Ngati Porou marae/hapu kept 

informed and receive relevant 

information enabling informed 

decisions on customary and 

commercial fisheries matters, 

sustainable fisheries developments 

and aquaculture.

Ongoing

Porou Ariki Trust (PAT)
Ripo ripo ana te moana
Te haerenga mai o nga tipuna e
Mai tawhiti nui ki Aotearoa
Ka heipu mai he whenua
Nau nei Whatonga to haere parekareka noa
Ka ngaro ka koingo to tipuna
Ko koe ra e Toi ka kauria mai te moana i 
Akiwa
I runga ra i nga kare o te wai 
Kei whea ra koe Whatonga e ngaro nei

U ke mai u ke atu e
Nau nei Whatonga to haere parekareka noa
Ka ngaro ka koingo to tipuna
Ko koe ra e Toi ka kauria mai te moana i 
Akiwa
I runga ra i nga kare o te wai
Kei whea ra ko Whatonga e ngao nei
U ke mai u ke atu e
U ke mai u ke atu e
Na Nanny Mate Kaiwai
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Porou Bill that is in Parliament will carry on through the process to become an Act 
of Parliament and hapu will be responsible for the management of their foreshore 
and seabed.  

A committee has been appointed to work with hapu to implement the Deed and 
ready themselves to use the instruments in the Deed.  The Foreshore and Seabed 
Committee members are: Rei Kohere (Chairman), Wi Pewhairangi Walker, Taina 
Ngarimu, Koromatai Pewhairangi, Hera Ngata-Gibson, Agnes Walker and Mihi 
Kutia.

NEW ADVISORY TRUSTEES 
The term of advisory trustees nominated by marae to the Porou Ariki Trust Board 
is three years.  The Porou Ariki Trust was established in 2006 so 2009 was the year 
for elections.  Some trustees were returned by their hapu clusters for a second 
term, while others were new to the Board.  The following cluster representatives 
nominated by hapu began their three-year appointments in June.

Cluster 1 Potikirua ki Whangaokena  Whi Wanoa
Cluster 2 Whangaokena ki Waiapu  James Johnston
Cluster 4 Reporua ki Rahuimanuka  Tui Warmenhoven
Cluster 5 Rahuimanuka ki Mataahu  Koroniria Ngarimu
Cluster 6 Mataahu ki Kokoronui  Koromatai Pewhairangi
Cluster 7 Kokoronui ki Te Toka a Taiau  John Tuari

Cluster 3 Pohautea ki Onepoto did not wish to be represented on the PAT Board.

MARAE GRANTS
This year $100,000 of the annual dividend received from the Ngati Porou Seafood 
Group was paid to TRONP and disbursed as marae grants to the 50 marae listed in 
the Porou Ariki Trust Deed.  Since the millennium a total of $1,787,200 has been 
paid as grants to these marae.

EDUCATION AND TRAINING FUND
Each year part of the dividend is invested as part of the Education and Training 
Fund. In 2003 the TRONP Board decided that education and training grants should 
be capitalised rather than spent, ensuring a sustainable fund for the future.  The 
trustees agreed to ten years of $30,000 annual investment into the Fund but altered 
this policy last year to ten per cent of the dividend.  The Runanga is now in the fifth 
year of investment, with the past three years funded from the dividends received 
from its commercial subsidiaries.  The Fund presently stands at $260,000.

NGATI POROU TANGA
Part of the dividend is also used to 
support Ngati Porou individuals, groups, 
events and activities which promote 
Ngati Porou in all arenas locally, 
regionally and nationally.  To give an idea 
of the range of support provided some 
of the recipients this year include Ngati 
Porou sports teams and individuals 
competing in national and international 
tournaments, Ngati Porou kapa haka 
competing at the national level, and 
reading resources written in te reo ake 
o Ngati Porou.

PAT Advisory Trustees
Back (left to right): Kody Pewhairangi, Koro Ngarimu, John Tuari, 

James Johnston.
Front (left to right): Whi Wanoa, Tui Warmenhoven.
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Ngati Porou Seafoods Group
Chairman’s Report
E hika ma,

Tena kotou.  Koenei nga korero mo te tau kua hipa.

Kei te ripoata a te General Manager nga korero mo nga mahi i oti ai.  

Engari ko te mihi teneki a te Kamupene ki a kotou kei te wa kaenga, ki a kotou kei 
whenua hoki.

E kore hoki e warewaretia te hunga mate.   Na ratau te kaupapa i ohaaki mai ki 
a tatau.  Na reira haere atu kotou ma matau e pikau, ma matau e ngaki i o kotou 
werawera.

Me mihi hoki ki a kotou katoa i haramai ki te Kamupene ki te hoko i nga ika.  I tuari 
nga ika a te Kamupene ki nga hau e wha, tae atu ki rawahi.  Mena kare i peraka, ka 
kare hoki te Kamupene i tu.

Kotou nga kaimahi a te Kamupene, ka nui te mihi ki a kotou.  Ko etahi kua haere ki 
mahi ke, ko etahi ano i tae kei waenga i a tatau. 

Heoi ano ra

Highlights:
Growing shareholder value through acquisition of an inshore •	
quota parcel, which is critical in developing key market channel 
opportunities and future profitability. 
Development of “Off The Hook” our gourmet seafood takeaway •	
food service business locally which compliments our Retail 
presence and activities.
Development of export market channels to Australia which further •	
expands our reach and opportunities.  
Investment in staff resources, particularly within the finance, •	
inventory, and operational areas.  These are key result areas for 
future business efficiency and growth.
Charitable status was achieved for the group.•	
Implementation of Navision, our group financial reporting system, •	
which will serve future growth requirements and also has the 
capacity to be expanded across other Ngati Porou structures.
NPSG take-over of Moana Pacific’s freehold and leasehold sites on •	
the wharf will take effect from September 2009 which will allow full 
control of the supply chain from source to market. 
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Snapshot Of The Year In Review
It has been another year of significant growth for the business which brings with 
it challenges that need to be overcome.  There are five key messages in this years 
annual report that provide a fair reflection of our performance this year which 
despite being lower than expectation is still positive.

Ngati Porou Seafoods Group Is A Strong Business, But Capable Of Be-
ing Much Stronger

We have a strong presence in the region and for the future.•	
We have diversified our business revenue streams.•	
Annual revenue growth has increased from $1.7 million in 2002 to $3.1 •	
million in 2009.
We are profitable, but need to perform better.•	
We have developed key strategic alliances that will assist us to grow •	
further in key areas.
We are developing a marketing strategy that clearly identifies the next •	
significant business steps of improving turnover and profitability.

New Business Activities Are Improving, But Have Not Yet Performed To 
Expectations

We have achieved some important objectives over the last two years, •	
however, these new business initiatives have brought new challenges 
which have negatively impacted our bottom line performance with a 
lower profit than forecast achieved.
These significant changes culminated in a review of the business, both •	
structural and operational, which identified a number of areas impacting 
business performance.
Key initiatives were developed and implemented to meet these •	
challenges and we are now in a position where key performance targets 
can realistically be focused on. 

Some Business Activities Are Performing
ACE revenue accounts for 60% of NPSG consolidated operating revenue •	
and despite ongoing diversification is an important revenue channel for 
the future.
Retail and Wholesale earnings continued to improve over the last 4 •	
months despite difficult economic conditions. 
Despite delayed starts export of fresh chilled fish and foodservice have •	
shown their potential returns and business importance for the coming 
year and beyond.

We Are In The Middle Of Our 5 Year Strategy 
We are in year 3 of our 5 year strategic plan.•	
We have achieved many of the objectives to date.•	
We need to keep our eyes focused on the end goal in 2014.•	

Ngati Porou Seafoods Group Vision Is To Develop A Profitable And 
Sustainable Seafood Business

We are still very much on target to achieve that goal.•	
We now have qualified and experienced staff in key positions to focus on •	
key performance areas which is a critical component towards achieving 
key result areas.  
New marketing initiatives identified which will be implemented in the •	
2009-2010 year will improve product reach, channel focus, revenue and 
profitability. 

“It’s not just about fish, its about us”, this vision statement resonates through 
this report.  We are ahead of target in many aspects and better equipped to face 
continued challenges.  I am extremely excited with new marketing initiatives 
implementation in the coming year, so watch this space.  

Mark Ngata
General Manager
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Annual Results
Consolidated Financial Performance
Total revenue of $3.1 million for the year was up by $320k on last 
year but down on plan by $200k. Quota trading, retail and wholesale 
performed above or on plan, which was positive, while export and 
foodservice were significantly down on plan primarily due to start-
up delays. 

An increase in operating expenses and lower than forecast revenue 
resulted in a net profit performance down on plan by $280k.  
Despite the result the company performance is satisfactory given 
the influence of the global financial crisis on the national and local 
economies and the impact of the start-up delays.

Consolidated Financial Position
Positive growth in assets was realised following acquisition of 
inshore quota shares and Off the Hook capital costs.  Internal capital 
funding and taking on of debt for these projects meant cash flow 
requirements were challenging.

Improving Revenue Through Diversification
Up until 2007 100% of our annual revenue was generated from 
quota trading activities.

The Company identified that while this was an important channel for 
the business it was also a high risk area as trading conditions long 
term in this area were forecast to trend downwards as large players 
cemented their positions through acquisitions and looked to exert 
more control over quota lease prices.  We have seen this downward 
trend commence this year in a number of specie groups.

Therefore, diversifying our revenue channels to ensure improved 
and consistent returns long term was a major business objective 
which will continue to improve as we gain more knowledge and 
experience in these market channels. 

Currently ACE trading accounts for 57% of gross revenue. 
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Review of Key Result Areas:
Resource And Asset Management
NPSG is a participant on all appropriate fishery forums and is making a positive contribution to ensure these resources are 
managed in a sustainable manner for the future. 
Allocation of coastline quota shares, worth approximately $5million, has not reached final agreement at this stage despite 
some progress being made.  We will continue to work towards a final agreement in the coming months.
Foreshore and Seabed forums promoted the need for Ngati Porou customary and commercial discussions which are continuing 
positively.   

Operational
As a result of significant growth operating policy and procedures have been developed and implemented during year.  Staff 
training and development programs have also been ongoing to ensure regulatory compliance is being maintained across the 
business.
 
Business Growth
There were a number of key business growth objectives for the year, namely ;

Identifying key inshore quota parcels for acquisition.•	
Developing a seafood takeaway’s to complement Retail activities, and•	
Further develop key market channels for export and foodservice.•	
Develop strategic alliances that would assist the business to grow.•	

We have achieved positive outcomes in all of these areas with an inshore quota acquisition of 400 tonne in October 2008, ‘Off 
The Hook’ our gourmet seafood takeaway’s opened in March 2009, Export and foodservice market channels commenced from 
March onwards, and key alliances with AFL, Sealord, and other iwi have proved beneficial.
Other growth opportunities progressed are aligned to more effectively managing the entire supply chain from supply to 
market which NPSG is currently busy with and includes taking over sites on the wharf to achieve that.

Outlook – 2010 and Beyond 
The outlook ahead is difficult to predict with uncertainty still lingering around in the global economic environment.  Despite 
this there are still opportunities to work on and issues to deal with to ensure our strategic plan is achieved on target.  Key issues 
for the business are ;

Business reshaping and disruption. 
The Company structure has changed several times in the last two years and now with charitable status being acquired •	
further changes to improve efficiency and internal movements will be made.  All new key projects will be managed 
adequately to ensure a clear process is followed and outcomes are achieved on time with minimal disruption.

Cost Competitiveness
Fish catching, Processing and Distribution are areas that NPSG will need to improve on if the plan is to be achieved •	
and  improved on.  Effective and efficient management of the entire supply chain from source to market is critical 
towards our business success.

The Deepening Recession
Depressing demand domestically and globally is occurring and whilst not significantly impacting us currently the •	
signs are there that some key wholesalers are starting to feel the pressure.
Developing a foreign exchange policy and strategy will be important to ensure export sales and cash flow will be •	
managed adequately. 
A close watch will be kept on economic indicators and debtors. •	

Escalating environmental & sustainability challenges
This is an ongoing issue food businesses are dealing with, however, it is also an opportunity as compliant and •	
sustainable companies will be able to move product.

Key Business Opportunities
There is certainly a growing consumer demand for niche market high quality fresh and frozen value-added seafood.  •	
Therefore, we will look to reduce our effort in national wholesale channels and focus more effort on retail, export, 
and foodservice channels.  
Indigenous markets and products are also starting to grow and we as an indigenous food business intend to focus •	
on these areas as we look to implement new marketing initiatives that will see business turnover and profitability 
grow consistently through controlling the supply chain from source to market.
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Key People In Key Roles
A review of the business during the year highlighted gaps within our staff resources 
that if not rectified would impact achievement of key objectives and performance 
of the business as well as the capacity to grow further.  

The last two years have taught us some hard lessons and as we move towards 
being a fully integrated business, controlling the entire supply chain from source to 
market, requires knowledge and experience in key areas.

The majority of the staff resource gaps identified in the business review have been 
resolved with appointments in sales & marketing, operations, inventory control, and 
processing.  

We now have a highly experienced and focused team with only the financial 
position still outstanding which in cooperation with TRONP is due for completion 
in October 2009. 
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The Trustees’ are responsible for the preparation, in accordance with New Zealand law and generally accepted accounting 
practice, of financial statements which give a true and fair view of the financial position of Te Runanga o Ngati Porou and group 
as at 30 June 2009 and the results of their operations and cash flows for the year ended 30 June 2009.

The Trustees’ consider that the financial statements of the Te Runanga o Ngati Porou and the group have been prepared using 
accounting policies appropriate to the company and group circumstances, consistently applied and supported by reasonable 
and prudent judgments and estimates, and that all applicable New Zealand Equivalents to International Financial Reporting 
Standards have been followed.

The Trustees’ have responsibility for ensuring that proper accounting records have been kept which enable, with reasonable 
accuracy, the determination of the financial position of the Te Runanga o Ngati Porou and group and enable them to ensure 
that the financial statements comply with the Financial Reporting Act 1993.

The Trustees’ have responsibility for the maintenance of a system of internal control designed to provide reasonable assurance 
as to the integrity and reliability of financial reporting. The Trustees’ consider that adequate steps have been taken to safeguard 
the assets of the company and group and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

The Trustees’ are pleased to present the financial statements of Te Runanga o Ngati Porou and group for the year ended 30 June 
2009. This annual report is dated 5 November 2009 and is signed in accordance with a resolution of the Trustees made on the 
same date. 

For and on behalf of the Trustees

A. Mahuika     A. Papuni
Chairman Board of Trustees    Trustee and Chair Audit and Risk Committee 
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AUDIT REPORT
TO THE READERS OF TE RUNANGA O NGATI POROU AND GROUP’S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2009

The Auditor-General is the auditor of Te Runanga O Ngati Porou (the Trust Board) and group. The Auditor-General has appointed 
me, Bruce Taylor, using the staff and resources of Deloitte, to carry out the audit of the financial statements of the Trust Board 
and group for the year ended 30 June 2009. 

Unqualified Opinion
In our opinion the financial statements of the Trust Board and group on pages 37 to 70:

comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand; and•	
fairly reflect:     •	

the Trust Board and group’s financial position as at 30 June 2009; and•	
the results of its operations and cash flows for the year ended on that date.•	

The audit was completed on 5 November 2009 and is the date at which our opinion is expressed. The basis of our opinion 
is explained below.  In addition, we outline the responsibilities of the Board of Trustees and the Auditor, and explain our 
independence.

Basis of Opinion
We carried out the audit in accordance with the Auditor-General’s Auditing Standards, which incorporate the New Zealand 
Auditing Standards. We planned and performed the audit to obtain all the information and explanations we considered 
necessary in order to obtain reasonable assurance that the financial statements did not have material misstatements, whether 
caused by fraud or error. Material misstatements are differences or omissions of amounts and disclosures that would affect a 
reader’s overall understanding of the financial statements.  If we had found material misstatements that were not corrected, we 
would have referred to them in our opinion. The audit involved performing procedures to test the information presented in the 
financial statements.  We assessed the results of those procedures in forming our opinion.

Audit procedures generally include:
determining whether significant financial and management controls are working and can be relied on to produce •	
complete and accurate data;
verifying samples of transactions and account balances;•	
performing analyses to identify anomalies in the reported data;•	
reviewing significant estimates and judgements made by the Board of Trustees;•	
confirming year-end balances;•	
determining whether accounting policies are appropriate and consistently applied; and•	
determining whether all financial statement disclosures are adequate.•	

We did not examine every transaction, nor do we guarantee complete accuracy of the financial statements. We evaluated 
the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial statements.  We obtained all the information and 
explanations we required to support our opinion above.

Responsibilities of the Board of Trustees and the Auditor
The Board of Trustees is responsible for preparing financial statements that show the financial position of the Trust Board and 
group as at 30 June 2009 and the results of its operations and cash flows for the year ended on that date.  The Board of Trustee’s 
responsibilities arise from the Maori Trust Boards Act 1955.  We are responsible for expressing an independent opinion on the 
financial statements and reporting that opinion to you.  This responsibility arises from section 15 of the Public Audit Act 2001 
and section 31(2) of the Maori Trust Boards Act 1955. 

Independence
When carrying out the audit we followed the independence requirements of the Auditor-General, which incorporate the 
independence requirements of the New Zealand Institute of Chartered Accountants. Other than the audit, we have no 
relationship with or interests in the Trust Board or any of its subsidiaries.

Bruce Taylor
Deloitte
On behalf of the Auditor-General, Hamilton, New Zealand 
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Consolidated Group TRONP Parent Entity
Note 2009 2008 2009 2008

NZ$’000 NZ$’000 NZ$’000 NZ$’000

Revenue

Service delivery 3 5,847 3,705 5,847 3,705

Commercial trading operations 3 4,110 3,475 - -

Rental income 3 58 97 138 137

Interest income 236 325 155 184

Dividend income related party - - 40 -

Other income 224 124 518 284

Total revenue 10,475 7,726 6,698 4,310

Expenses

Employee benefit expenses 2,793 2,224 1,981 1,668

Cost of sales from commercial trading 
operations

3 1,250 960 - -

Depreciation and amortisation expense 3 229 213 110 123

Impairment of assets - 83 - -

Interest expense 335 114 - -

Rental expense 195 - 157 -

Other expenses 3 5,756 3,986 4,648 2,493

Total expenses 10,558 7,580 6,896 4,284

Net surplus/(deficit) for the year (83) 146 (198) 26

The accompanying Statement of Accounting Policies and Notes to the Financial Statements
on pages 42 to 70 form an integral part of these Financial Statements. 

 1998 - 1999                 1999 - 2000               2000 - 2001              2001-2002              2002 - 2003             2003-2004            2004 - 2005             2005 - 2006                2006 - 2007             2007-2008             2008-2009

-151,371

166,382

943,859

 1,060,771

 870,292

329,881

 832,522 

29,120,412 

 671,999 

 145,834 

 -83,000 
$0m

$0.5m

$1.0m

$0.75m

$0.25m

$1.25m

$1.50m

$29.25m

$29.50m

$29.0m

$28.75.0m

Financial performance for the period 1 July 1998 to 30 June 2009
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Consolidated Group TRONP Parent Entity
Note 2009 2008 2009 2008

NZ$’000 NZ$’000 NZ$’000 NZ$’000

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 6 3,381 4,135 2,295 2,429

Trade and other receivables 7 1,073 467 1,129 614

Inventories 8 43 66 - -

Total current assets 4,497 4,668 3,424 3,043

Non-current assets

Investments 9 - - 2,494 2,494

Loans 11 - 40 35 78

Biological assets 12 1,474 1,350 - -

Fishing quota 13 17,481 13,881 - -

Goodwill 14 - - - -

AFL income shares 15 16,886 16,886 - -

Property, plant and equipment 16 4,122 4,076 1,989 2,058

Total non-current assets 39,963 36,233 4,518 4,630
Total assets 44,460 40,901 7,942 7,673

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 17 1,531 1,156 1,048 589

Borrowings 18 822 17 - -

Provisions 19 207 153 100 92

Total current liabilities 2,560 1,326 1,148 681

Non-current liabilities

Borrowings 20 3,179 772 - -

Total non-current liabilities 3,179 772 - -
Total liabilities 5,739 2,098 1,148 681
Net assets 38,721 38,803 6,794 6,992

Equity

Reserves 21 2,703 2,703 1,499 1,499

Retained earnings 36,018 36,100 5,295 5,493

Total equity 38,721 38,803 6,794 6,992

The accompanying Statement of Accounting Policies and Notes to the Financial Statements
on pages 42 to 70 form an integral part of these Financial Statements. 
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Consolidated Group TRONP Parent Entity
Note 2009 2008 2009 2008

NZ$’000 NZ$’000 NZ$’000 NZ$’000
Retained Earnings

Opening balance 36,100 35,954 5,493 5,466

Net income recognised directly in equity - - - -

Total recognised income and expense for the 
period

Net surplus/(deficit) for the year (83) 146 (198) 26

Closing balance 36,018 36,100 5,295 5,493

Reserves

Opening balance 2,703 2,703 1,499 1,499

Net income recognised directly in equity - - -

Closing balance 2,703 2,703 1,499 1,499

Total Equity 38,721 38,803 6,794 6,992

The accompanying Statement of Accounting Policies and Notes to the Financial Statements
on pages 42 to 70 form an integral part of these Financial Statements. 
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Consolidated Group TRONP Parent Entity
Note 2009 2008 2009 2008

NZ$’000 NZ$’000 NZ$’000 NZ$’000

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash was provided from:

Service Delivery 5,201 3,634 5,340 3,624

Commercial Trading Operations 3,793 2,251 - -

Interest 242 319 166 179

Dividend Related Party - - 40 -

Other 388 (28) 802 330

9,624 6,176 6,348 4,133

Cash was applied to:

Payments to Suppliers and Operating 
Expenses 6,589 3,601 4,384 2,418

Payments to Employees, Directors and 
Trustees 2,739 2,344 1,973 1,732

GST 127 (420) 45 11

Interest 335 - - -

9,790 5,525 6,402 4,161

NET CASH INFLOW/OUTFLOW FROM 
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

22 (166) 651 (54) (28)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Cash was applied to:

Purchase of Fixed Assets 205 365 40 46

Purchase of Quota 3,601 - - -

3,806 365 40 46

NET CASH INFLOW/OUTFLOWS FROM 
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

(3,806) (365) (40) (46)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash was provided from:

Hire purchase activities - 89 - -

Loans and Advances 3,234 - - -

3,234 89 - -

Cash was applied to:

Hire purchase Activities 16 - - -

Loans and Advances - - 39 184

16 - 39 184

NET CASH  INFLOW/OUTFLOW FROM 
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

3,218 89 (39) (184)

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH HELD (754) 375 (133) (258)

Opening Balance of Cash 4,135 3,760 2,428 2,686

CLOSING BALANCE OF CASH 3,381 4,135 2,295 2,428

The accompanying Statement of Accounting Policies and Notes to the Financial Statements
on pages 42 to 70 form an integral part of these Financial Statements. 
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Statement of Compliance
Te Runanga o Ngati Porou operates as a Maori Trust Board in accordance with the Maori Trust Boards Act 1955. Te Runanga o 
Ngati Porou is a reporting entity for the purposes of the Financial Reporting Act 1993 and its financial statements comply with 
that Act. The principal activities of the group is the support and development of Ngati Porou through the delivery of various 
services to Ngati Porou and the prudent management of Ngati Porou commercial assets for the benefit of Ngati Porou. 

By virtue of the majority assets of the group being commercial assets, Te Runanga o Ngati Porou (inclusive of its subsidiary 
entities) is a profit orientated entity incorporated in New Zealand. 

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Practice in New Zealand (‘NZ 
GAAP’). They comply with the New Zealand Equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards (‘NZ IFRS’). 

Compliance with NZ IFRS ensures that the consolidated financial statements comply with International Financial Reporting 
Standards (‘IFRS’). The parent entity financial statements also comply with IFRS.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the trustees on 5 November 2009.

Basis of Preparation
The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of historical cost, except for the revaluation of certain non-current 
assets and financial instruments.

Cost is based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for assets.

Accounting policies are selected and applied in a manner which ensures that the resulting financial information satisfies the 
concepts of relevance and reliability, thereby ensuring that the substance of the underlying transactions or other events is 
reported. 

The consolidated entity changed its accounting policies on 1 July 2008 to comply with NZ IFRS. The transition to NZ IFRS 
is accounted for in accordance with NZ IFRS-1 ‘First-time Adoption of New Zealand Equivalents to International Financial 
Reporting Standards’, with 1 July 2007 as the date of transition. An explanation of how the transition from superseded policies 
to NZ IFRS has affected the company’s and consolidated entity’s financial position, financial performance and cash flows is 
discussed in note 28.

Standards Approved But Not Yet Effective 
NZ IAS 8 ‘Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors’ requires that when an entity has not applied a new 
Standard or Interpretation that has been issued but is not yet effective, it shall make disclosures of the possible impact on its 
financial statements in the period of initial application. 

The following are the new or revised Standards or Interpretations in issue that are not yet required to be adopted by the entity 
in preparing financial statements for periods ending on 30 June 2009:
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Standard/Interpretation
Effective for annual reporting 
periods beginning on or after

Expected to be initially applied in the 
financial year ending

NZ IFRS 8 ‘Operating Segments’ 1 January 2009 30 June 2010

NZ IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial 
Statements’ – Revised Standard

1 January 2009 30 June 2010

NZ IAS 23 ‘Borrowing Costs’ – revised 
2007

1 January 2009 30 June 2010

NZ IAS 27 ‘Consolidated and Separate 
Financial Statements’ – revised 2008

1 July 2009 30 June 2010

Improvements to New Zealand 
Equivalents to International Financial 
Reporting Standards 2008

Various* 30 June 2010

Amendments to NZ IFRS 1 ‘First-time 
Adoption of New Zealand Equivalents 
to International Financial Reporting 
Standards’ and NZ IAS 27 ‘Consolidated 
and Separate Financial Statements’ – 
Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary, 
Jointly Controlled Entity or Associate

1 January 2009 30 June 2010

Improving Disclosures about Financial 
Instruments (Amendments to NZ IFRS 7 
Financial Instruments: Disclosures)

1 January 2009 30 June 2010

Omnibus Amendments (2009) 1 July 2009 30 June 2010

Improvements to New Zealand 
Equivalents to International Financial 
Reporting Standards 2009

** 30 June 2011

* The effective date and transitional provisions vary by Standard. Most of the improvements are effective for annual 
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009, with earlier adoption permitted, and they are to be applied retrospectively.

** The effective date and transitional provisions vary by Standard. Most of the improvements are effective for annual 
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010, with earlier adoption permitted.

The Trustees anticipate that the above standards and interpretations will have no material impact on the financial 
statements of the Group and Parent in the period of initial application. 
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1. Summary of Accounting Policies

(a) Aotearoa Fishing Limited (AFL) income shares

The subsidiary company, Ngati Porou Seafoods Limited holds 9,366 shares or 7.49% of the income shares in Aotearoa Fisheries 
Limited. These income shares entitle Ngati Porou Seafoods Limited to receive a dividend from Aotearoa Fisheries Limited but 
these shares also contain a number of restrictions. Aotearoa Fisheries Limited signalled in June 2009 that they intend to pay 
their first dividend to income shareholders out of the earnings for the 30 September 2010 financial year with a likely payment 
date of October 2010. These income shares are reviewed annually for impairment.

(b) Biological assets

Biological assets relate to the group’s inventories in livestock (sheep and cattle) and a small forestry block owned and operated 
by the subsidiary Pakihiroa Farms Limited. Biological assets are stated at fair value less point-of-sale costs, with any change 
therein recognised in the Income Statement. 

Biological assets are recognised as an expense at the time of sale of livestock or the sale of the forestry block.

(c) Borrowings

Borrowings are recorded initially at fair value, net of transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, borrowings are 
measured at amortised cost with any difference between the initial recognised amount and the redemption value being 
recognised in profit and loss over the period of the borrowing using the effective interest rate method.

(d) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed as they are incurred. 

(e) Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand; cash in banks and investments in money market instruments, net of 
outstanding bank overdrafts. 

(f) Derivative financial instruments
The consolidated group has not entered into any derivative financial instruments as at 30 June 2009. Should the consolidated 
group enter into derivative financial instruments (eg foreign exchange contracts) derivatives will be initially recognised at fair 
value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured to their fair value at each reporting 
date. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately. The Group has not adopted hedge accounting.

(g) Employee benefits

Provision is made for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave, long service leave, and sick 
leave when it is probable that settlement will be required and they are capable of being measured reliably.

Provisions made in respect of employee benefits expected to be settled within 12 months, are measured at their nominal 
values using the remuneration rate expected to apply at the time of settlement. 

Provisions made in respect of employee benefits which are not expected to be settled within 12 months are measured as the 
present value of the estimated future cash outflows to be made by the consolidated entity in respect of services provided by 
employees up to reporting date.

(h) Financial assets
Investments are recognised and derecognised on trade date where the purchase or sale of an investment is under a contract 
whose terms require delivery of the investment within the timeframe established by the market concerned. Investments are 
initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs except for those financial assets classified as fair value through profit or 
loss which are initially measured at fair value.

Financial assets are classified into the following specified categories: financial assets ‘at fair value through profit or loss’, ‘held-
to-maturity’ investments, ‘available-for-sale’ financial assets and ‘loans and receivables’. The classification depends on the nature 
and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition.
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets in this category are either financial assets held for trading or financial assets designated as at fair value through 
profit or loss.
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A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:
it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near future; or
it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments that the consolidated group manages together and has a recent 
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or
it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

All derivatives entered into by the Group are classified as held for trading as the consolidated group does not apply hedge 
accounting. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are stated at fair value, with any resultant gain or loss recognised 
in the income statement. The net gain or loss recognised in the income statement includes any dividend or interest earned on 
the financial asset. Fair value is determined in the manner described in note 24. The Group currently has no financial instruments 
in this category. 

Held-to-maturity investments
Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity 
that the Group’s management has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. These investments are recorded at 
amortised cost using the effective interest method less impairment, with revenue recognised on an effective interest basis. The 
effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income 
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the 
expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset. The 
Group currently has no financial instruments in this category. 

Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are those non-derivative financial assets that are designated as available-for-sale or are not 
classified as loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments or financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. Certain 
shares held by the Group are classified as being available-for-sale and are stated at fair value. Fair value is determined in the 
manner described in note 24. Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are recognised directly in the available-forsale 
revaluation reserve, until the investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or 
loss previously recognised in the available-for-sale revaluation reserve is included in profit or loss for the period. Dividends 
on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised separately in the income statement when the Group’s right to receive 
payment is established. The Group’s investment in Aotearoa Fisheries Limited (AFL) shares is recognised in this category.

Loans and receivables
Trade receivables, loans and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active 
market are classified as loans and receivables. Loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest 
method less any impairment. The Group’s trade receivables, loans and intercompany loans is recognised in this category. 

Impairment of financial assets
Financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit or loss, are assessed for indicators of impairment at each balance 
sheet date. Financial assets are impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred 
after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the investment have been impacted.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment is the difference between the asset’s carrying 
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate. The carrying 
amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of trade 
receivables where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account. When a trade receivable is 
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account. A trade receivable is deemed to be uncollectible upon notification 
of insolvency of the debtor or upon receipt of similar evidence that the Group will be unable to collect the trade receivable. 
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in the income statement. If, in a subsequent period, 
the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the 
impairment loss was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed. In respect of financial assets carried at 
amortised cost, with the exception of trade receivables, the impairment loss is reversed through the income statement to the 
extent that the carrying amount of the investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised 
cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised. Subsequent recoveries of trade receivables previously written 
off are credited against the allowance account. In respect of available-for-sale debt instruments, the loss is reversed through the 
income statement. In respect of available-for-sale equity instruments, any subsequent increase in fair value after an impairment 
loss is recognised directly in equity.

(i) Financial instruments issued by the company

Debt and equity instruments
Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the 
contractual arrangement. Debt is classified as current unless the Group has the unconditional right to defer settlement of the 
debt for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.
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Interest and dividends
Interest and dividends are classified as expenses or as distributions of profit consistent with the balance sheet classification of 
the related debt or equity instruments.

Borrowings
Borrowings are recorded initially at fair value, net of transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, borrowings are measured 
at amortised cost with any difference between the initial recognised amount and the redemption value being recognised in 
profit or loss over the period of the borrowing using the effective interest method. The effective interest rate is the rate that 
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the borrowings, or where appropriate, a shorter 
period, to the net carrying amount of the borrowings.

(j) Fishing quota (intangible asset)

Fish quota has been recorded at fair value on recognition (Te Ohu Kaimoana allocation) with additional quota acquisitions 
recorded at cost. Fish quota is treated as an asset with an indefinite life and are not amortised and are carried at fair value less 
any impairment losses. Impairment losses are recognised whenever the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable 
amount. Fish quota is tested annually for impairment. The useful life is assessed annually to determine whether the indefinite 
life assessment continues to be supportable.

(k) Goods and services tax

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST), except for receivables and 
payables which are recognised inclusive of GST. 

Cash flows are included in the cash flow statement on an exclusive basis. The GST component of cash flows arising from investing 
and financing activities which is recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is classified as operating cash flows.

(l) Goodwill

Goodwill, representing the excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and 
contingent liabilities acquired, is recognised as an asset and not amortised, but tested for impairment annually and whenever 
there is an indication that the goodwill may be impaired. Any impairment is recognised immediately in profit or loss and is not 
subsequently reversed. 

(m) Government grants

Government grants are assistance by the government in the form of transfers of resources to the consolidated entity in return 
for past or future compliance with certain conditions relating to the operating activities of the entity. Government grants include 
government assistance where there are no conditions specifically relating to the operating activities of the consolidated entity 
other than the requirement to operate in certain regions or industry sectors.

Government grants relating to income are recognised as income over the periods necessary to match them with the related 
costs. Government grants that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of 
giving immediate financial support to the consolidated entity with no future related costs are recognised as income of the 
period in which it becomes receivable.

Government grants relating to assets are treated as deferred income and recognised in profit and loss over the expected useful 
lives of the assets concerned.

(n) Impairment of assets

At each reporting date, the consolidated entity reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine 
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable 
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where the asset does not 
generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, the consolidated entity estimates the recoverable amount of the 
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Goodwill, intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment 
annually and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired. An impairment of goodwill is not subsequently 
reversed.
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future 
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the 
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

Annual Report 2009

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 June 2009



If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying 
amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised in profit or 
loss immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at fair value, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation 
decrease.
Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is increased to the 
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but only to the extent that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the 
carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (cash-generating 
unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately, unless the relevant asset is 
carried at fair value, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

(o) Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs, including an appropriate portion of fixed and variable 
overhead expenses, are assigned to inventory on hand by the method most appropriate to each particular class of inventory, 
with the majority being valued on a first in first out basis. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price less all 
estimated costs of completion and costs to be incurred in marketing, selling and distribution. 

(p) Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Consolidated entity as lessee
Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised at their fair value or, if lower, at amounts equal to the present value 
of the minimum lease payments, each determined at the inception of the lease. The corresponding liability to the lessor is 
included in the balance sheet as a finance lease obligation. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and 
reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance 
charges are charged directly against income.  

Finance leased assets are amortised on a straight line basis over the estimated useful life of the asset or the lease term, whichever 
is shorter.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another 
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

(q) Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value 
less costs to sell.

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered through a sale 
transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and 
the asset (or disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its present condition. The sale of the asset (or disposal group) is 
expected to be completed within one year from the date of classification.

(r) Payables

Trade payables and other accounts payable are recognised when the consolidated entity becomes obliged to make future 
payments resulting from the purchase of goods and services.

(s) Principles of consolidations

The consolidated financial statements are prepared by combining the financial statements of all the entities that comprise the 
consolidated group, being Te Runanga o Ngati Porou (the parent entity) and its subsidiaries as defined in NZ IAS-27 ‘Consolidated 
and Separate Financial Statements’. A list of subsidiaries appears in note 10 to the financial statements. Consistent accounting 
policies are employed in the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

On acquisition, the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of a subsidiary are measured at their fair values at the date 
of acquisition. Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair values of the identifiable net assets acquired is recognised 
as goodwill. If, after reassessment, the fair values of the identifiable net assets acquired exceeds the cost of acquisition, the 
deficiency is credited to profit and loss in the period of acquisition.
The interest of minority shareholders is stated at the minority’s proportion of the fair values of the assets and liabilities 
recognised.
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The consolidated financial statements include the information and results of each subsidiary from the date on which Te 
Runanga o Ngati Porou obtains control and until such time as Te Runanga o Ngati Porou ceases to control the subsidiary.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, all intercompany balances and transactions, and unrealised profits arising 
within the consolidated group are eliminated in full.

(t) Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings are measured at cost. Plant and equipment, leasehold improvements and equipment under finance lease 
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the 
acquisition of the item. In the event that settlement of all or part of the purchase consideration is deferred, cost is determined 
by discounting the amounts payable in the future to their present value as at the date of acquisition.

Depreciation is provided on property, plant and equipment, including freehold buildings but excluding land. Depreciation is 
calculated on a straight line basis so as to write off the net cost or of each asset over its expected useful life to its estimated 
residual value. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the period of the lease or estimated useful life, whichever is the 
shorter, using the diminishing value basis.  

The following depreciation rates have been used in the calculation of depreciation:
Buildings   2.5% to 4%•	
Plant and equipment  3% to 50%•	
Furniture and fittings  3% to 40%•	
Office equipment  10% to 40%•	
Motor vehicles  8% to 26%•	
Taonga   5%•	

(u) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the consolidated group has a present obligation as a result of a past event, the future sacrifice 
of economic benefits is probable, and the amount of the provision can be measured reliably.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at 
reporting date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

Where a provision is measured using the cashflows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present 
value of those cashflows.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, the 
receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that recovery will be received and the amount of the receivable can 
be measured reliably.

Onerous contracts
An onerous contract is considered to exist where the consolidated group has a contract under which the unavoidable cost 
of meeting the contractual obligations exceed the economic benefits estimated to be received. Present obligations arising 
under onerous contracts are recognised as a provision to the extent that the present obligation exceeds the economic benefits 
estimated to be received.

(v) Revenue recognition

Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the consolidated group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks 
and rewards of ownership of the goods.
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Rendering of services
Revenue from a contract to provide services is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the contract at the 
balance sheet date.

Dividend and interest revenue
Dividend revenue from investments is recognised when the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established. 
Interest revenue is recognised on a time proportionate basis that takes into account the effective yield on the financial asset. 

(w) Taxation

Te Runanga O Ngati Porou and Group are registered with the Charities Commission and is exempt from Income Tax. 

2. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that 
affect the reported amounts in the financial statements. Management continually evaluates its judgements and estimates in 
relation to assets, liabilities, contingent liabilities, revenues and expenses. Management bases its judgements and estimates on 
historical experience and on various other factors it believes to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which 
form the basis of the carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may 
differ from these estimates under different assumptions and conditions.

Management has identified the following critical accounting policies for which significant judgements, estimates, and 
assumptions are made. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions and conditions and may 
materially affect the financial results or the financial position reported in future periods.

Further details of the nature of these assumptions and conditions may be found in the relevant notes to the financial 
statements.

(a) Significant judgements

Fish Quota and AFL Income Shares
On 31 March 2006, Te Ohu Kaimoana Trustee Limited (TOKM) approved Te Runanga o Ngati Porou mandated Iwi Organisation 
(MIO) status, and an allocation of fish quota, quota shortfall, cash, Aotearoa Fisheries Limited (AFL) shares and other cash was 
transferred. These assets were initially recognised by the consolidated group in 2007 at the following fair values. 

TOKM Allocation Assets
Fair Value Recognition

NZ$’000
TOKM Allocation

Value March 2006
Discount

%

Cash and interest 1,174 1,174 -

Fish Quota 10,181 11,225 9%

AFL Income Shares 16,886 22,515 25%

Total 28,241 34,914 19%

Fish Quota Consolidated Group
(Carrying Values as per note 13) 2009 2008

NZ$’000 NZ$’000

Allocation from TOKM Fair Value 10,181 10,181
Acquisitions at cost 7,300 3,700

17,481 13,881
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The Board of the subsidiaries entities, the Ngati Porou Seafoods Group (incorporating Ngati Porou Seafoods Limited and Ngati 
Porou Fisheries Limited) in conjunction with the Trustees of Porou Ariki Trust undertook an annual review of the carrying values 
for impairment at 30 June 2009. 

Consistent with previous years, a combination of independent valuation reports were requested and discounted cash flow 
analysis (DCF) valuations were undertaken to review the carrying values for impairment as at 30 June 2009. On a DCF valuation 
basis, the fair value of the TOKM fish quota ($10.2M) was confirmed as appropriate given annual ACE lease revenue generated 
from this quota.

Independent valuations carried out by Aotearoa Quota Brokers Limited and DCF valuations undertaken on the additional 
quota acquisitions ($7.3M) confirmed this value to be in the upper quartile of the independent valuation reports and at the top 
end of the management DCF valuation adopting a 12% discount rate; an annual growth factor in earnings before interest and 
tax (EBIT) of 2.5% per annum and forecast EBIT on this quota of $0.5M to $0.8M between 2010 and 2014.

AFL Income Shares Consolidated Group
(Carrying values as per note 15) 2009 2008

NZ$’000 NZ$’000

Fair value allocation from TOKM 16,886 16,886

Using a net tangible asset valuation methodology, the AFL income shares values upon allocation form TOKM were initially 
written down by $5.6 million (or 25%) to reflect the inability to generate returns to Ngati Porou until about 2009/10 and the 
various restrictions attached to these shares such as no voting rights and no ability to sell the income shares. 

The Board of Ngati Porou Seafoods Group (incorporating Ngati Porou Seafoods Limited and Ngati Porou Fisheries Limited) 
in conjunction with the Trustees of Porou Ariki Trust undertook an annual review of the carrying value for impairment. Both 
parties were satisfied that the initial fair value recorded in 2007 ($16.9m) remains appropriate having reviewed independent 
valuations of Aotearoa Fisheries Limited (AFL) and the fact that the first dividend from AFL is now less than 2 years away. 

Pakihiroa Farms Limited Livestock Valuations

Biological Assets Consolidated Group
(Carrying values as per note 12) 2009 2008

NZ$’000 NZ$’000

Sheep 638 511
Cattle 766 769
Total livestock at fair value 1,404 1,280
Forestry Block (Puanga) 70 70
Fair value allocation from TOKM 1,474 1,350

Consistent with previous years, livestock has been valued at independent market fair values by PGG Wrightson Ltd.  Movements 
in market value between the years, has been recognised in the income statement. The Forestry Block has been recognised at 
market value as at 1 July 2006 and an independent valuation for the forestry block will be sought in 2010. The potential impact 
of the change in value of the small forestry block was not deemed to have a material impact on the financial statements of the 
group.

(b) Significant estimates and assumptions

There are no other significant estimates or assumptions to report other than those outlined under significant judgements 
above.
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3. Profit from operations

Consolidated Group TRONP Parent Entity
2009 2008 2009 2008

NZ$’000 NZ$’000 NZ$’000 NZ$’000
Revenue Includes:

Service delivery revenue:
Government contracts•	 3,660 3,705 3,660 3,705
Te Haeata Sub-Committee Funding•	 2,187 - 2,187 -

5,847 3,705 5,847 3,705

Commercial trading operations revenue:
Gross Fishing ACE income•	 1,940 2,061 - -
Gross Fishing Sales income•	 1,117 645 - -

Total External Fishing Income 3,057 2,706 - -
Gross Farming Livestock income•	 1,053 769 - -

Total commercial trading operations revenue 4,110 3,475 - -

Rental Income:
External rental income 58 97 58 57
Related party rental income - - 80 80

58 97 138 137

Expenses Includes:

Cost of sales from commercial trading activity
Fishing ACE cost of sales•	 357 340 - -
Fishing Sales cost of sales•	 785 528 - -

Total Fishing Cost of Sales  1,142 868 - -
Farming Livestock cost of purchases•	 108 92 - -

1,250 960 - -

Other Expenses Include:

Auditors remuneration 104 103 86 81

Bad and doubtful debt 48 - 40 -

Directors Fees 80 50 - -

Depreciation:
Buildings•	 43 34 28 30
Plant & Equipment•	 27 22 6 5
Furniture & Fittings•	 10 7 4 4
Office Equipment•	 91 90 39 47
Motor Vehicles•	 41 43 16 20
Taonga•	 17 17 17 17

229 213 110 123
Grants and Distributions:

Ngati Porou Marae Grants•	 100 306 100 306
Other Ngati Porou Activities•	 41 26 41 26

141 332 141 332

Te Haeata Sub-Committee Costs 2,243 - 2,243 -

Trustee Fees 121 86 78 56
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4.Remuneration of auditors
Consolidated Group TRONP Parent Entity
2009 2008 2009 2008

NZ$’000 NZ$’000 NZ$’000 NZ$’000
Auditor of the parent entity

Audit of the financial statements 104 103 86 81

Other non-audit services - - - -
104 103 86 81

The auditor of Te Runanga o Ngati Porou and all of its subsidiary entities is Deloitte (Hamilton Office). The Office of the Controller 
and Auditor-General appointed Bruce Taylor of Deloitte to carry out the audit of the financial statements of the Trust Board and 
the subsidiary entities have also elected to appoint Deloitte to audit their individual financial statements.

Other than the audit of the financial statements, Deloitte have not provided any other professional services to Te Runanga o 
Ngati Porou and the group.

5. Key governance personnel remuneration
Consolidated Group TRONP Parent Entity
2009 2008 2009 2008

NZ$’000 NZ$’000 NZ$’000 NZ$’000

Trustee Meeting Fees 
Te Runanga o Ngati Porou 79 56 79 56
Porou Ariki Trust 42 30 - -

121 86 79 56

Te Haeata Sub-Committee
Meeting fees 637 - 637 -

637 - 637 -

Subsidiary entities Directors Fees
Pakihiroa Farms Limited 11 10 - -
Ngati Porou Seafoods Group 69 40 - -

80 50 - -

Other remuneration (Professional Services)
Te Runanga o Ngati Porou (Refer Note 23) 248 124 248 124
Pakihiroa Farms Limited (Refer Note 23) 33 20 - -
Ngati Porou Seafoods Group - - - -

281 144 248 124

Key governance personnel are defined as Trustees or Directors associated with entities within the Te Runanga o Ngati Porou 
group. Remuneration relates to Trustee and Director fees together with additional payments made to Trustees or Directors 
engaged to act as professional advisors.

Note 23, related party disclosures provides details of other remuneration (professional services) outlined in above.
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Trustees Fees Consolidated Group TRONP Parent Entity
2009 2008 2009 2008
NZ$ NZ$ NZ$ NZ$

Te Runanga o Ngati Porou Trustees

Rohe One
Dr A Mahuika (Chairman) 5,300 5,775 5,300 5,775
Dr K Dewes 1,750 1,750 1,750 1,750
P Tangaere 1,250 1,000 1,250 1,000
B Mackey 1,500 1,725 1,500 1,725
A Papuni 3,550 3,375 3,550 3,375
K Goldsmith 1,400 - 1,400 -

Rohe Two
S Parata (Deputy Chairman) 4,325 3,350 4,325 3,350
T Ngarimu 1,500 1,625 1,500 1,625
W Burdett 3,450 2,800 3,450 2,800
L Harrison 750 - 750 -
H McIlroy 500 - 500 -

Rohe Three
T Pewhairangi 2,500 2,000 2,500 2,000
N Raihania 3,400 2,275 3,400 2,275
H Boydie Kirikiri 1,250 500 1,250 500
M Whitehead 2,750 2,250 2,750 2,250
R Tuhiwai-Ruru 1,750 2,400 1,750 2,400
H Poutu 1,000 - 1,000 -
M Whatuira 1,000 - 1,000 -

Rohe Four
P Te Kani 1,500 2,000 1,500 2,000
Dr F Te Momo 3,144 2,250 3,144 2,250
J Weke 2,750 2,250 2,750 2,250
W Irwin 1,850 2,575 1,850 2,575
G Aston 1,500 2,250 1,500 2,250

49,669 42,150 49,669 42,150
Chairman’s Honorarium 28,701 13,847 28,701 13,847

78,370 55,997 78,370 55,997

Porou Ariki Trust (Responsible Trustees)
Dr A Mahuika (Chairman) 3,000 2,100 - -
Dr K Dewes 750 1,625 - -
P Tangaere 750 750 - -
B Mackey 250 500 - -
A Papuni 1,250 1,500 - -
S Parata (Deputy Chairman) 1,500 2,225 - -
T Ngarimu 1,000 1,250 - -
W Burdett 1,000 1,500 - -
T Pewhairangi 1,250 1,750 - -
N Raihania 1,250 1,750 - -
H Boydie Kirikiri 500 - - -
M Whitehead 1,000 1,750 - -
R Tuhiwai-Ruru 750 1,625 - -
P Te Kani 500 500 - -
Dr F Te Momo 1,500 750 - -
J Weke 1,500 1,500 - -
B Irwin 750 1,850 - -
G Aston 500 1,000 - -
H Poutu 500 - - -
K Goldsmith 500 - - -
L Harrison 500 - - -
M Whatuira 500 - - -
H McIlroy 500 - - -

Porou Ariki Trust (Advisory Trustees)
C Dewes - 250 - -
S Fitzsimmons - 1,000 - -
T Tangaere - 500 - -
T Tangihaere 750 1,563 - -
T Warmenhoven 1,500 1,750 - -
W Wanoa 1,625 125 - -
T Kupenga 375 875 - -
N Ihaka 375 - - -
J Johnston 750 - - -
J Tuari 250 - - -
K Ngarimu 250 - - -
Sub-Total Meeting Fees 27,375 29,988 - -
Chairman’s Honorarium (Dr A Mahuika) 15,000 - - -
Total Porou Ariki Trustee Fees 42,375 29,988 - -
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Te Haeata Meeting Fees Consolidated Group TRONP Parent Entity
2009 2008 2009 2008
NZ$ NZ$ NZ$ NZ$

Marae, Whanau and Hapu Cluster 
Representatives
Cluster 1 – R Kohere * 87,175 - 87,175 -
Cluster 2 – Dr A Mahuika (Chair) * 70,350 - 70,350 -
Cluster 3 – N Ihaka 39,175 - 39,175 -
Cluster 4 – L Smith * 24,550 - 24,550 -
Cluster 5 – S Parata (Deputy Chair) * 71,400 - 71,400 -
Cluster 6 – K Pewhairangi 38,925 - 38,925 -
Cluster 7 – J Walker 30,050 - 30,050 -
Runanga Representatives
R McLeod * 64,089 - 64,089 -
W Dewes * 81,822 - 81,822 -
H Te Koha * 66,150 - 66,150 -
Negotiating Team Member
M Mahuika * 63,342 - 63,342 -

637,028 - 637,028 -

* These representatives are members of the Te Haeata negotiating team who meet more often than Cluster Representatives.
 

Directors Fees Consolidated Group TRONP Parent Entity
2009 2008 2009 2008
NZ$ NZ$ NZ$ NZ$

Ngati Porou Seafoods Group
W Dewes (Chairman reappointed October 2007)) 17,500 10,000 - -
C Insley (appointed October 2007) 12,875 5,335 - -
G Milner (appointed October 2007) 12,875 5,335 - -
D Moana (reappointed October 2007) 12,875 8,000 - -
T Tangihaere (appointed October 2007) 12,875 5,335 - -
W Burdett (resigned September 2007) - 2,000 - -
K Pewhairangi (resigned September 2007) - 2,030 - -
H Poutu (resigned September 2007) - 2,030 - -

69,000 40,065 - -
Pakihiroa Farms Limited
S Parata (Chairman) 4,400 3,200 - -
T Pewhairangi (Deputy Chair) 1,020 1,000 - -
W Burdett 2,268 1,400 - -
K Dewes 368 1,200 - -
W Mackey 1,873 1,400 - -
L Rickard (resigned Farm Supervisor role 30 June 
2008)

1,038 - - -

H Collier (appointed Farm Supervisor role 1 July 
2008)

270 1,400 - -

11,267 9,600 - -

6. Cash and cash equivalents
Consolidated Group TRONP Parent Entity
2009 2008 2009 2008

NZ$’000 NZ$’000 NZ$’000 NZ$’000

Cash at bank in operating accounts 510 574 457 137
Cash at bank on short-term deposit accounts 3,049 3,818 1,838 2,292

3,559 4,392 2,295 2,429
Bank balances overdrawn (178) (257) - -

3,381 4,135 2,295 2,429

The primary group’s bankers are The ANZ Banking Group (ANZ) with subsidiary Pakihiroa Farms Limited banking with the 
Bank of New Zealand (BNZ). Surplus funds forecast not to be required for short-term operational requirements are invested in 
various short-term interest earning deposit accounts ranging from call accounts to 120-day term deposits.

The bank overdraft for the group at 30 June 2009 related to the Ngati Porou Seafoods Group overdraft facility with the ANZ 
Bank (overdraft interest rate of 9.45%). The bank overdraft for the group as at 30 June 2008 related to the Pakihiroa Farms 
Limited overdraft facility with the BNZ Bank (overdraft interest rate of 12.03%). Pakihiroa Farms Limited was not in overdraft as 
at 30 June 2009.
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7. Trade and other receivables
Consolidated Group TRONP Parent Entity
2009 2008 2009 2008

NZ$’000 NZ$’000 NZ$’000 NZ$’000

Trade receivables 1,053 446 875 427
Less allowance for doubtful debts (8) - - -
GST refund due/(payable) 23 6 (17) (46)
Related party receivables - - 271 230
Prepayments 5 15 - 3

1,073 467 1,129 614

Included in the groups trade receivable balances are debtors with a carrying amount of $79,000 (2008:$6,000) which are past 
due at the reporting date for which the group has not provided as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and 
the amounts are still considered recoverable. The group does not hold any security over these balances.

Consolidated Group TRONP Parent Entity
2009 2008 2009 2008

NZ$’000 NZ$’000 NZ$’000 NZ$’000

60 – 90 days 76 5 63 -
90 – 120 days 3 1 3 1
Total past due date 79 6 66 1

8. Inventories
Consolidated Group TRONP Parent Entity
2009 2008 2009 2008

NZ$’000 NZ$’000 NZ$’000 NZ$’000

Raw materials (fish supplies) 43 66 - -
43 66 - -

9. Investments
Consolidated Group TRONP Parent Entity
2009 2008 2009 2008

NZ$’000 NZ$’000 NZ$’000 NZ$’000
Equity in Subsidiary Company
Pakihiroa Farms Limited - - 2,494 2,494

- - 2,494 2,494

Te Runanga o Ngati Porou is the 100% shareholder in Pakihiroa Farms Limited. Refer note 10 and note 25. The investment 
carrying value was reviewed for impairment as at 30 June 2009 and the value of the investment of $2.5M was considered 
appropriate.

10. Subsidiaries

Name of subsidiary
Place of 

incorporation 
& operation

Ownership 
Interest and 
Voting Right Principal activity

2009 2008

Pakihiroa Farms Limited NZ 100% 100% Commercial farming operation

TRONP as Responsible Trustee
Porou Ariki Trust NZ 100% 100% Mandated Iwi Organisation for Fish Assets
Ngati Porou Seafoods Limited NZ 100% 100% Fish asset holding & corporate administration
Ngati Porou Fisheries Limited NZ 100% 100% Fish processing, distribution, wholesale & export

Ngati Porou Fisheries Limited
Real Fresh Limited NZ 100% 100% Fish retail and foodservice

Pakihiroa Farms Limited (PFL)

PFL purchased the net farming assets (excluding Pakihiroa Station land and buildings) from Te Runanga o Ngati Porou on 1 July 
2006 at total market value of $2,493,658 with consideration paid to Te Runanga o Ngati Porou being shares for an equivalent 
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value in PFL. PFL’s function is to manage the farming operations of Te Runanga O Ngati Porou as a separate commercial entity 
with an objective of providing dividends to the Shareholder. 

Porou Ariki Trust (PAT) and Related Commercial Operating Subsidiaries

PAT was set-up by Te Runanga o Ngati Porou on 23 March 2006. PAT was established to perform the functions of a Mandated Iwi 
Organisation (MIO) under the Maori Fisheries Act 2004 on behalf of Te Runanga o Ngati Porou – the Responsible Trustee. These 
functions primarily include receiving and holding settlement assets and establishing asset-holding companies.

Ngati Porou Seafoods Limited, Ngati Porou Fisheries Limited and Real Fresh Limited constitute the Ngati Porou Seafoods Group 
whose primary function is to receive the Te Ohu Kaimoana fishing allocation assets (quota and shares) to be managed in 
accordance with the Trust Deed of PAT and to also undertake the commercial fishing operations. 

The reporting date of all subsidiary entities is 30 June.

11. Loans
Consolidated Group TRONP Parent Entity
2009 2008 2009 2008

NZ$’000 NZ$’000 NZ$’000 NZ$’000

Te Whare Wananga 0 Ngati Porou - 40 - 40
Related Party Loan – Pakihiroa Farms Limited - - 35 38

- 40 35 78

During the year, the loan to Te Whare Wananga O Ngati Porou (TWWONP) was written-off as TWWONP was not in a financial 
position to repay the advance. Interest is payable on the related party loan of 10% per annum.

12. Biological assets
Consolidated Group TRONP Parent Entity
2009 2008 2009 2008

NZ$’000 NZ$’000 NZ$’000 NZ$’000
Pakihiroa Farms Ltd
Opening balance livestock
Sheep 8,330 (2008:7,631) 511 468 - -
Cattle 1,247 (2008:927) 769 547 - -

1,280 1,015 - -
Changes in balance due to numbers of livestock (59) 154 - -
Changes in balance due to market values (holding gain) 183 111 - -
Closing balance livestock 1,404 1,280 - -
Made up of:
Sheep 7,341 (2008: 8,330) 638 511 - -
Cattle 1,209 (2008: 1,247) 766 769 - -

1,404 1,280 - -

Forestry block (Puanga Station) 70 70 - -
1,474 1,350 - -

Consistent with previous years, livestock has been valued at independent market fair values by PGG Wrightson Ltd in June 
2009.

13. Fishing quota
Consolidated Group TRONP Parent Entity
2009 2008 2009 2008

NZ$’000 NZ$’000 NZ$’000 NZ$’000
Ngati Porou Seafoods Group
Te Ohu Kaimoana quota allocation fair value 10,181 10,181 - -
Quota purchase on the open market at cost 7,300 3,700 - -

17,481 13,881 - -

During the year, the fishing quota values were reviewed for impairment. A combination of independent valuations and 
discounted cash flow (DCF) valuation methodologies were considered as part of the annual review of carrying values. The 
Board of Ngati Porou Seafoods Group together with the Trustees of Porou Ariki Trust were satisfied that the values as at 30 June 
2009 were not impaired. Refer to Note 2 on key significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions relating to the 
valuation of this fish quota.
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14. Goodwill
Consolidated Group TRONP Parent Entity
2009 2008 2009 2008

NZ$’000 NZ$’000 NZ$’000 NZ$’000

Goodwill upon acquisition - 83 - -
Less accumulated impairment - (83)
Net Goodwill at year end - 0 - -

During 2008, Real Fresh Limited a subsidiary of the consolidated group purchased assets from Moana Pacific for $214,598. The 
purchase price of these assets included $83,300 for goodwill. This goodwill was fully impaired during 2008.

15. AFL income shares
Consolidated Group TRONP Parent Entity
2009 2008 2009 2008

NZ$’000 NZ$’000 NZ$’000 NZ$’000
Ngati Porou Seafoods Group
Aotearoa Fisheries Limited income shares 16,886 16,886 - -

16,886 16,886 - -

Ngati Porou Seafoods Limited hold 9,366 shares or 7.49% of the income shares in Aotearoa Fisheries Limited. These income 
shares entitle Ngati Porou Seafoods Ltd to receive a dividend from Aotearoa Fisheries Limited but these shares also contain a 
number of restrictions. Aotearoa Fisheries Limited signalled in June 2009 that they intend to pay their first dividend to income 
shareholders out of the earnings for the 30 September 2010 financial year with a likely payment date of October 2010. Refer 
to Note 2 on key significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions relating to the valuation of these AFL income 
shares.

16. Property, plant and equipment

Consolidated Group
Plant & Furniture Office Motor

Land Buildings Equipment & Fittings Equipment Vehicles Taonga Total
NZ$’000 NZ$’000 NZ$’000 NZ$’000 NZ$’000 NZ$’000 NZ$’000 NZ$’000

Gross Carrying Amount
Balance at 1 July 2007 2,338 1,400 69 58 453 317 499 5,134
Additions - 2 144 32 100 (20) - 258
Balance at 1 July 2008 2,338 1,402 213 90 553 297 499 5,392
Additions - 161 20 (14) 40 49 - 256
Balance at 30 June 2009 2,338 1,563 233 76 593 346 499 5,648
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance at 1 July 2007 - (391) (25) (26) (325) (191) (168) (1,126)
Depreciation Expense - (34) (27) (7) (82) (46) (17) (213)
Disposals - - - - - 23 - 23
Balance at 1 July 2008 - (425) (52) (33) (407) (214) (185) (1,316)
Depreciation Expense - (46) (27) (3) (94) (45) (14) (229)
Disposals - - - - - 19 - 19
Balance at 30 June 2009 - (471) (79) (36) (501) (240) (199) (1,526)
Net Book Value
30 June 2008 2,338 1,003 178 32 188 112 314 4,076
30 June 2009 2,338 1,092 154 40 92 106 300 4,122
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TRONP Parent Entity
Plant & Furniture Office Motor

Land Buildings Equipment & Fittings Equipment Vehicles Taonga Total

NZ$’000 NZ$’000 NZ$’000 NZ$’000 NZ$’000 NZ$’000 NZ$’000 NZ$’000

Gross Carrying Amount
Balance at 1 July 2007 753 1,199 39 50 422 230 499 3,192
Additions - 1 24 9 11 - - 45
Balance at 1 July 2008 753 1,200 63 59 433 230 499 3,237
Additions - - 9 - 32 - - 41
Balance at 30 June 2009 753 1,200 72 59 465 230 499 3,278
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance at 1 July 2007 - (387) (22) (23) (307) (149) (168) (1,056)
Depreciation Expense - (30) (5) (4) (47) (21) (16) (123)
Balance at 1 July 2008 - (417) (27) (27) (354) (170) (184) (1,179)
Depreciation Expense - (28) (6) (4) (41) (15) (16) (110)
Balance at 30 June 2009 - (445) (33) (31) (395) (185) (200) (1,289)
Net Book Value
30 June 2008 753 783 36 32 79 60 315 2,058
30 June 2009 753 755 39 28 70 45 299 1,989

Valuations
The most recent rating valuations, completed by Landmass Technology Limited for the Gisborne District Council dated 1 
September 2008, are as follows

Land and buildings valuations Consolidated Group TRONP Parent Entity
2009 2008 2009 2008

NZ$’000 NZ$’000 NZ$’000 NZ$’000

Te Runanga o Ngati Porou 
Onepoto Road, Hicks Bay 275 249 275 249
Barry Avenue, Ruatoria (TRONP) 194 186 194 186
Hekiera Road, Ruatoria (Whare Wananga) 333 318 333 318
144 Waiomatatini Road, Ruatoria (Tourism) 35 35 35 35
195 Wainui Road, Gisborne (Porou Ariki) 216 193 216 193
199 Wainui Road, Gisborne (Hamoterangi) 182 146 182 146
Pakihiroa Station (Title restrictions) 5,227 5,110 5,227 5,110

6,462 6,237 6,462 6,237
Pakihiroa Farms Limited
Puanga Station, Goodwin Road, Gisborne 1,670 1,775 - -
Total valuations land and buildings 8,132 8,012 6,462 6,237

Pakihiroa Station is recorded in the property, plant and equipment at the valuation at the date of settlement with the Crown. It 
is not the policy of Te Runanga o Ngati Porou to revalue this land as there are various restrictions to the title of this land as part 
of the settlement agreement. 

17. Trade and other payables
Consolidated Group TRONP Parent Entity
2009 2008 2009 2008

NZ$’000 NZ$’000 NZ$’000 NZ$’000

Trade creditors 1,311 1,135 828 568
Income in advance 220 21 21 21

1,531 1,156 1,048 589
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18. Borrowings (Current)
Consolidated Group TRONP Parent Entity
2009 2008 2009 2008

NZ$’000 NZ$’000 NZ$’000 NZ$’000
Pakihiroa Farms Ltd
Bank of New Zealand (due 12/10/09) 700 - - -

Ngati Porou Seafoods Ltd
ANZ Banking Group 105 - - -

805 - - -

Hire Purchase (Current Portion) 17 17 - -
822 17 - -

Pakihiroa Farms Ltd has successfully renegotiated a new facility for the loan due to expire on 12 October 2009 subsequent to 
balance date (30 June 2009) and the details of this new facility are disclosed in Note 29.

19. Provisions
Consolidated Group TRONP Parent Entity
2009 2008 2009 2008

NZ$’000 NZ$’000 NZ$’000 NZ$’000

Opening balance 153 138 92 93
Additional provision recognised 207 153 100 92
Reduction in provision (153) (138) (92) ( 93)
Closing balance 207 153 100 92

The provision relates to employee entitlements, primarily annual leave entitlements. 

20. Non-current borrowings
Consolidated Group TRONP Parent Entity
2009 2008 2009 2008

NZ$’000 NZ$’000 NZ$’000 NZ$’000
Pakihiroa Farms Ltd
Bank of New Zealand (due 12/10/09 8.34%pa fixed 
interest only repayments) 700 700 - -
Bank of New Zealand (due 09/09/23 9.95%pa fixed 
interest only repayments) 200 - - -

Ngati Porou Seafoods Ltd
ANZ Banking Group (due 15/10/23 9.45%pa fixed 
3 years) 3,029 - - -

3,929 700 - -
Hire Purchase liability 72 89 - -

4,001 789 - -
Less current portion transferred (822) (17) - -
Total non-current borrowings 3,179 772 - -

Pakihiroa Farms Ltd has successfully renegotiated a new facility for the BNZ loans subsequent to balance date (30 June 2009) 
and the details of this new facility are disclosed in Note 29.

(a) Assets pledged as security
The Bank of New Zealand loan is secured via a registered mortgage over Puanga Station (Goodwin Road, Gisborne). The ANZ 
Banking Group loan is secured over the assets of the Ngati Porou Seafoods Group with cross guarantees between Ngati Porou 
Seafoods Limited and Ngati Porou Fisheries Limited.

(b) Defaults and breaches
There have been no defaults or breaches of the banking covenants during the financial year.

21. Reserves
Consolidated Group TRONP Parent Entity
2009 2008 2009 2008

NZ$’000 NZ$’000 NZ$’000 NZ$’000

Asset revaluation reserve 1,487 1,487 283 283
Capital reserve account – farms 1,216 1,216 1,216 1,216

2,703 2,703 1,499 1,499
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(a) Asset revaluation reserve
The group reserve relates to the revaluation of Puanga Station – Gisborne, to market value (an increase of $1,205,000) upon the 
establishment of Pakihiroa Farms Ltd on 30 June 2006 prior to the farming assets (inclusive of Puanga Station – Gisborne) being 
transferred from Te Runanga o Ngati Porou to Pakihiroa Farms Ltd plus $283,000 relating to other asset revaluations within Te 
Runanga o Ngati Porou.

(b) Capital reserve account - farms
This reserve relates to the valuation of Pakihiroa Station at the date of settlement when it was returned to Te Runanga o 
Ngati Porou from the Crown. It is not the policy of Te Runanga o Ngati Porou to revalue this land given the various restrictions 
associated with the title of this land.

22. Notes to the cash flow statement

Consolidated Group TRONP Parent Entity
2009 2008 2009 2008

NZ$’000 NZ$’000 NZ$’000 NZ$’000
Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net operating profit/(loss) per income statement (83) 146 (198) 26
Non Cash Items:
Depreciation and amortisation 229 213 110 123
Bad and Doubtful Debts 48 - 40 -
Impairment of assets - 83 - -

277 296 150 123
Add movements in Working Capital
(Increase)/Decrease in Sundry
Debtors & Prepayments (690) (101) (472) (144)
(Increase)/Decrease in Livestock (193) (265) - -
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventory 23 (66) - -
(Decrease)/Increase in Creditors 500 641 466 (33)

(360) 209 (6) (177)

Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) (166) 651 (54) (28)

23. Related party disclosures

(a) Parent entity – Te Runanga o Ngati Porou
Details of subsidiaries of Te Runanga o Ngati Porou are reported under note 10. Details of key governance personnel 
remuneration are also reported separately under note 5. 

(b) Transactions with related parties
Transactions involving the parent entity – Te Runanga o Ngati Porou
Amounts receivable from and payable to related parties at balance date are disclosed in note 7 and 17 of these financial 
statements.

During the financial year, Te Runanga o Ngati Porou recorded the following transactions with related parties:
Revenue received from related parties Consolidated Group TRONP Parent Entity

2009 2008 2009 2008
NZ$’000 NZ$’000 NZ$’000 NZ$’000

Pakihiroa Farms Limited:
Dividend - - 40 -
Lease for Pakihiroa Station (market value) - - 80 80
Interest on shareholder loan (10%) - - 4 4
Share of various costs (actual) - - - 7

- - 124 91
Porou Ariki Trust:
Administration Grant - - 45 40
Other Grants and Funding - - 250 419

- - 295 459
- - 419 550

(c) Key Governance Personnel Remuneration
Details of key governance personnel remuneration are disclosed in note 5 of the financial statements. Outlined below are the 
transactions where Te Runanga o Ngati Porou has made payment for professional services to either a trustee or Director or a 
close member of the family of a key management personnel.
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Professional Services Provided by Related Parties Consolidated Group TRONP Parent Entity
(Trustees and/or close Family Members) 2009 2008 2009 2008

NZ$ NZ$ NZ$ NZ$
Te Runanga o Ngati Porou:
A Mahuika 7,000 - 7,000 -
Kahui Legal - Te Haeata 71,260 - 71,260 -
 - Legal advice 126,255 123,585 124,562 123,585
L Harrison - Te Haeata 44,305 - 44,305 -

248,820 123,585 247,127 123,585

A Mahuika (Chairman of Te Runanga o Ngati Porou) received payment for professional translation and facilitation services 
during the year over and above remuneration payments outlined in Note 5.

M Mahuika is defined as a close family member (son) under NZ IAS 24.9 (Related Party Disclosures) with respect to the Chairman 
of Te Runanga o Ngati Porou. As a partner of Kahui Legal, Kahui Legal received payments from Te Haeata, a sub-committee of 
Te Runanga o Ngati Porou as a member of a negotiating team and payments directly from Te Runanga o Ngati Porou and the 
Ngati Porou Seafoods Group for the provision of professional legal advice. 

L Harrison, a recently appointed Trustee to Te Runanga o Ngati Porou received payments (fees and disbursements) from Te 
Haeata during the year in relation to professional communication services from a company where she is a shareholder director 
Atahaia Consultancy Limited. 

Professional Services Provided by Related Parties Consolidated Group TRONP Parent Entity
(Directors) 2009 2008 2009 2008

NZ$ NZ$ NZ$ NZ$

Pakihiroa Farms Limited:
Agfirst NZ Limited 32,431 3,021 - -
CRR Partnership 339 845 - -
Agriculture NZ Limited - 16,513 - -

32,270 20,379 - -

The above services provided by Directors of Pakihiroa Farms Limited relate to Farm Supervisory and Administration support to 
the Company. H Collier is a Director of Agfirst NZ Limited and L Rickard is a Partner in CRR Partnership and former Director of 
Agriculture NZ Limited. These professional services were provided on standard commercial terms and conditions. 

(d) Related party transactions between subsidiary entities

During the normal course of business, there are various funds transfers between subsidiaries within the Ngati Porou Seafoods 
Group (Ngati Porou Seafoods Limited, Ngati Porou Fisheries Limited and Real Fresh Limited). As at 30 June 2009, the following 
inter-company advances and loans were payable between the subsidiaries:

Consolidated Group
2009 2008

NZ$’000 NZ$’000

Ngati Porou Seafoods Limited advances to:
Ngati Porou Fisheries Limited 1,546 887
Real Fresh Limited 605 374

2,151 1,261

These inter-company advances and loans have been eliminated on the consolidation of the group accounts. The Board of Ngati 
Porou Seafood’s Limited has made a provision for doubtful debts of $605k for the advance to Real Fresh Limited due to the 
present inability of Real Fresh Limited to repay this advance. Once again, as this is a provision between two related companies, 
this provision is not recognised nor does it affect the overall consolidated group result. 

24. Financial instruments

(a) Financial Instruments and Management Objectives
The group are party to a number of financial instruments as part of normal operations. The group does not enter into or trade 
financial instruments, including derivative financial instruments, for speculative purposes. 

The group activities expose it primarily to the financial risks associated with interest rates (on both term deposits and borrowing) 
with foreign currency exchange rate risk forecast to be an area to address during 2010 from the group fisheries export sales 
plans.

The financial instruments utilised by the group include:
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Short-term deposits for surplus funds•	
Fixed interest rate borrowing for some debt•	
Variable interest rate borrowing for some debt•	

There have been no changes to these risk management objectives during the year.

(b) Significant Accounting Policies
Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted, including the criteria for recognition, and the basis of 
measurement applied in respect of each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in note 1 
to the financial statements. 

(c) Foreign Currency Risk Management
The group has only begun to export and is developing its forward foreign exchange (hedging) policy. There are no foreign 
currency hedges or swaps in place as at 30 June 2009 (2008: nil) There are no assets domiciled in foreign currency as at 30 June 
2009 (2008: nil).

(d) Interest Rate Risk Management
The group is exposed to interest rate risk as it borrows funds at both fixed and floating rates. This risk is managed by maintaining 
an appropriate mix between fixed and floating rate borrowing. The group has not entered into the use of interest rate swap 
contracts or forward interest rate contracts as at 30 June 2009 (2008:nil)

(e) Credit risk management
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the 
consolidated group. The group has adopted a policy of checking the creditworthiness of counterparties it deals with as a 
means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults.

Trade accounts receivables consist of a range of customers and parties, spread across a number of diverse industries (Crown 
through individuals) with the vast majority of customers and parties New Zealand based.

With the exception of the Crown/Government for various service delivery contracts, the consolidated group does not have any 
significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty.

(f) Fair value of financial instruments
The carrying values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the financial statements approximates fair value. 

Cash and cash equivalents – refer note 6. Cash and cash equivalents are carried at cost.•	
Trade and other receivables – refer note 7. Trade and other receivables are carried at cost and reviewed annually for •	
impairment and collectability.
Investments – refer note 9 and 10. Investments are carried at cost and reviewed annually for impairment. •	
Loans – refer note 11. Loans are carried at cost and reviewed annually for impairment.•	
AFL income shares – refer note 15 and note 2. AFL income shares are carried at fair value and reviewed annually for •	
impairment. 
Fish quota – refer note 13 and note 2. Fish quota is on intangible asset and not a financial asset. Fish quota is carried •	
at fair value upon recognition and cost for additional acquisitions and reviewed annually for impairment. 

(g) Liquidity risk management
The consolidated group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate cash reserves banking facilities and by regularly 
monitoring forecast and actual cash flows. 

The following table details the remaining contractual maturities of the consolidated groups’ non-derivative financial liabilities. 
The amounts are the undiscounted cashflows of the financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the group can be 
required to pay amounts. The table includes both interest and principal cashflows.

Consolidated Group 2009 Note Int rate
Less than  

1 year
1-2 years 2-5 years 5+ years Total

Financial Liabilities

Bank Overdrafts 6 9.45% 178 

Trade and other payables 17 0% 1,531 - - - 1,531 

Borrowings 18,20 8.00% 72 68 4,855 - 4,995 

Total Financial Liabilities  1,603 68 4,855 - 6,526 
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Consolidated Group 2008 Int rate
Less than  

1 year
1-2 years 2-5 years 5+ years Total

Financial Liabilities  

Bank Overdrafts 6 12% 257 

Trade and other payables 17 0% 1,156 - - - 1,156 

Borrowings 18,20 8.34% 75 758 - - 834 

Total Financial Liabilities 1,231 758 - - 1,990 

TRONP Parent 2009 Int rate
Less than  

1 year
1-2 years 2-5 years 5+ years Total

Financial Liabilities

Bank Overdrafts 6 n/a - 

Trade and other payables 17 0% 1,048 - - - 1,048 

Borrowings 18,20 n/a - - - - - 

Total Financial Liabilities 1,048 - - - 1,048 

TRONP Parent 2008 Int rate
Less than  

1 year
1-2 years 2-5 years 5+ years Total

Financial Liabilities

Bank Overdrafts 6 n/a - 

Trade and other payables 17 0% 589 - - - 589 

Borrowings 18,20 n/a - - - - - 

Total Financial Liabilities 589 - - - 589 

(h) Market risk
The consolidated groups’ activities expose it primarily to changes in interest rates – both interest rates on surplus funds 
placed on short-term deposits and movement in interest rates on its borrowing facilities. The group currently manages this 
risk primarily through entering into fixed interest rate agreements for its term borrowings and floating interest rates on its 
overdraft facilities. The consolidated group has not entered into any interest rate swap contracts as at 30 June 2009 (2008: nil)

(i) Sensitivity analysis
The consolidated group is primarily impacted by movements in interest rates as at 30 June 2009.

Consolidated Group TRONP Parent Entity
2009 2008 2009 2008

NZ$’000 NZ$’000 NZ$’000 NZ$’000
100 basis point (1%) movement on interest revenue
Net surplus/(deficit) for year 38+/- 40+/- 24+/- 26+/-
Retained earnings 38+/- 40+/- 24+/- 26+/-

100 basis points (1%) movement in interest costs
Net surplus/(deficit) for year 16+/- - - -
Retained earnings 16+/- - - -

(j) Categories of financial instruments

The following table list the groups’ financial assets and liabilities by category of financial instrument. Details of the criteria 
for recognition and methods used to account for the different categories of financial assets and liabilities are detailed in 
the accounting policies in Note 1. The table below lists the groups of financial assets and liabilities by category of financial 
instrument.
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Consolidated Group 2009
Loans &

receivables
Available-for-

sale

Financial 
liabilities at 

amortised cost

Investments 
carried at 

cost
Total

NZ$’000 NZ$’000 NZ$’000 NZ$’000 NZ$’000

Note

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 6 3,381 - - - 3,381 

Trade and other receivables 7 1,073 - - - 1,073 

Investments 9 - - - - - 

Loans 11 - - - - - 

AFL Income Shares 15 - 16,886 - - 16,886 

Total Financial Assets 4,454 16,886 - - 21,340 

Non-Financial Assets 23,120 

Total Assets 44,460 

Financial Liabilities

Trade and other payables 17 - - 1,531 - 1,531 

Borrowings 18,20 - - 4,001 - 4,001 

Total Financial Liabilities - - 5,532 - 5,532 

Non-Financial Liabilities 207 

Total Liabilities 5,739 

Consolidated Group 2008
Loans &

receivables
Available-

for-sale

Financial 
liabilities at 

amortised cost

Investments 
carried at cost

Total

NZ$’000 NZ$’000 NZ$’000 NZ$’000 NZ$’000

Note

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 6 4,135 - - - 4,135 

Trade and other receivables 7 467 - - - 467 

Investments 9 - - - - - 

Loans 11 40 - - - 40 

AFL Income Shares 15 - 16,886 - - 16,886 

Total Financial Assets 4,642 16,886 - - 21,528 

Non-Financial Assets 19,373 

Total Assets 40,901 

Financial Liabilities

Trade and other payables 17 - - 1,156 - 1,156 

Borrowings 18,20 - - 789 - 789 

Total Financial Liabilities - - 1,945 - 1,945 

Non-Financial Liabilities 153 

Total Liabilities 2,098 
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TRONP Parent 2009
Loans & 

receivables
Available-

for-sale

Financial 
liabilities at 

amortised cost

Investments 
carried at cost

Total

NZ$’000 NZ$’000 NZ$’000 NZ$’000 NZ$’000

Note

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 6 2,295 - - - 2,295 

Trade and other receivables 7 1,129 - - - 1,129 

Investments 9 - - - 2,494 2,494 

Loans 11 35 - - - 35 

AFL Income Shares 15 - - - - - 

Total Financial Assets 3,459 - - 2,494 5,953 

Non-Financial Assets 1,989 

Total Assets 7,942 

Financial Liabilities

Trade and other payables 17 - - 1,048 - 1,048 

Borrowings 18,20 - - - - - 

Total Financial Liabilities - - 1,048 - 1,048 

Non-Financial Liabilities 100 

Total Liabilities 1,148 

TRONP Parent 2008
Loans & 

receivables
Available-

for-sale

Financial 
liabilities at 

amortised cost

Investments 
carried at cost

Total

NZ$’000 NZ$’000 NZ$’000 NZ$’000 NZ$’000

Note

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 6 2,429 - - - 2,429 

Trade and other receivables 7 614 - - - 614 

Investments 9 - - - 2,494 2,494 

Loans 11 78 - - - 78 

AFL Income Shares 15 - - - - - 

Total Financial Assets 3,121 - - 2,494 5,615 

Non-Financial Assets 2,058 

Total Assets 7,673 

Financial Liabilities

Trade and other payables 17 - - 589 - 589 

Borrowings 18,20 - - - - - 

Total Financial Liabilities - - 589 - 589 

Non-Financial Liabilities 92 

Total Liabilities 681 
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25. Business Activity Support Information

Business Activity Revenues

External Sales Other Total
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

NZ$’000 NZ$’000 NZ$’000 NZ$’000 NZ$’000 NZ$’000

Government Contracts (TRONP) 5,847 3,705 850 606 6,697 4,311
Farming (PFL) 1,053 769 - - 1,053 769
Fishing (PAT) 3,057 2,706 91 140 3,148 2,846
Total of all Business Activities 10,898 7,926
Eliminations (423) (200)

Consolidated group revenue 10,475 7,726

Business Activity Results

2009 2008
NZ$’000 NZ$’000

Continued Operations:
Government Contracts (TRONP) (198) 26
Farming (PFL) 126 5
Fishing (PAT) 29 114

(43) 146
Eliminations (40) -
Profit/(loss) for the period (83) 146

Business activity assets and liabilities

Assets Liabilities

2009 2008 2009 2008

NZ$’000 NZ$’000 NZ$’000 NZ$’000

Government Contracts (TRONP) 7,942 7,727 1,149 761
Farming (PFL) 3,359 3,230 1,151 1,108
Fishing (PAT) 35,907 33,017 3,748 834

47,208 43,974 6,048 2,703
Eliminations (2,748) (3,073) (309) (605)
Consolidated group 44,460 40,901 5,739 2,098

Products and services within each business activity

The principal products and services of each of these divisions are as follows:

Government Contracts (TRONP)•	 the delivery of a range of services under contract to the 
government and Crown departments to the Iwi of Ngati Porou 
and various other Iwi initiatives

Farming (PFL)•	 the farming operation of PFL operating across Pakihiroa Station 
(Ruatoria) and Puanga Station (Gisborne)

Fishing (PAT)•	 the ownership and operation of the Iwi fishing assets following 
allocation from Te Ohu Kaimoana and post settlement 
acquisition. 

During the financial year, there were no changes (new or disposed) in business activities.
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26. Commitments for expenditure

Te Runanga o Ngati Porou and the group do not have any material commitments for expenditure as at 30 June 2009 (2008: 
Nil).

Operating lease commitments Consolidated Group TRONP Parent Entity
2009 2008 2009 2008

NZ$’000 NZ$’000 NZ$’000 NZ$’000
Operating lease commitments payable:
With one year 67 94 53 63
Between one and two years 44 85 30 54
Between two and 5 years 12 93 7 37
Later than 5 years - - -

123 272 90 154

27. Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Te Runanga o Ngati Porou and the group are not aware of any contingent liabilities or contingent assets as at 30 June 2009 
(2008: Nil).

28. Impact of the adoption of the New Zealand Equivalent to International Financial Reporting 
Standards

These financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2009 are the first financial statements that are prepared under NZ IFRS. 
Te Runanga o Ngati Porou and group has applied NZ IFRS in preparing these financial statements.

Te Runanga o Ngati Porou and group’s transition date is 1 July 2007. The group prepared its opening NZ IFRS Balance Sheet at 
that date. The group’s NZ IFRS adoption date is 1 July 2008.

In preparing these financial statements in accordance with NZ IFRS 1, the group has applied the mandatory exemptions. 

In preparing its opening NZ IFRS Balance Sheet, the group has adjusted (where necessary) amounts reported previously in the 
financial statements prepared in accordance with its previous NZ GAAP basis of accounting. Explanations of how this transition 
from previous NZ GAAP to NZ IFRS has affected the group’s financial position, financial performance, and cash flows are set out 
in the following reconciliation note.

There are no material differences between the Cash Flow Statement presented under NZ IFRS and the Cash Flow Statement 
presented under previous NZ GAAP.
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Effect of NZ IFRS on the balance sheet as at 1 July 2007

Note Consolidated Group TRONP Parent Entity
NZ GAAP

$NZ’$000
Effect of

Transition
NZIFRS

NZ$’000
NZ GAAP

$NZ’$000
Effect of 

Transition
NZIFRS

NZ$’000
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3,760 - 3,760 2,687 - 2,687
Trade and other receivables 678 - 678 335 - 335
Total current assets 4,438 - 4,438 3,022 - 3,022

Non-current assets
Investments - - 2,494 - 2,494
Loans 40 - 40 75 - 75
Livestock (a) 1,015 (1,015) - - - -
Biological assets (a) - 1,085 1,085 - - -
Fishing quota 13,881 - 13,881 - - -
AFL income shares 16,886 - 16,886 - - -
Property, plant and equipment (b) 4,078 (70) 4,008 2,136 - 2,136
Total non-current assets 35,900 - 35,900 4,704 - 4,704
Total assets 40,338 - 40,338 7,727 - 7,727

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 685 - 685 496 - 496
Provisions 295 - 295 265 - 265
Total current liabilities 980 - 980 761 - 761

Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 700 - 700 - - -
Total non-current liabilities 700 - 700 - - -
Total liabilities 1,680 - 1,680 761 - 761
Net assets 38,658 - 38,658 6,966 - 6,966

Equity
Capital
Reserves 2,704 - 2704 1,499 - 1,499
Retained earnings 35,954 - 35,954 5,467 - 5,467
Total equity 38,658 - 38,658 6,966 - 6,966

Effect of NZ IFRS on the balance sheet as at 30 June 2008

Note Consolidated Group TRONP Parent Entity
NZ GAAP

$NZ’$000
Effect of

Transition
NZIFRS

NZ$’000
NZ GAAP

$NZ’$000
Effect of 

Transition
NZIFRS

NZ$’000
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 4,135 - 4,135 2,429 - 2,429
Trade and other receivables 467 - 467 614 - 614
Inventories 66 - 66 - - -
Total current assets 4,668 - 4,668 3,043 - 3,043

Non-current assets
Investments - - - 2,494 - 2,494
Loans 40 - 40 78 - 78
Livestock (a) 1,280 (1,280) - - - -
Biological assets (a) - 1,350 1,350 - - -
Fishing quota 13,881 - 13,881 - - -
Goodwill - - -- - - -
AFL income shares 16,886 - 16,886 - - -
Property, plant and equipment (b) 4,146 (70) 4,076 2,058 - 2,058
Total non-current assets 36,233 - 36,233 4,630 - 4,630
Total assets 40,901 - 40,901 7,673 - 7,673

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 1,156 - 1,156 589 - 589
Borrowings 17 - 17 - - -
Provisions 153 - 153 92 - 92
Total current liabilities 1,326 - 1,326 681 - 681

Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 772 - 772 - - -
Total non-current liabilities 772 - 772 - - -
Total liabilities 2,098 - 2,098 681 - 681
Net assets 38,803 - 38,803 6,992 - 6,992

Equity
Capital
Reserves 2,703 - 2,703 1,499 - 1,499
Retained earnings 36,100 - 36,100 5,493 - 5,493
Total equity 38,803 - 38,803 6,992 - 6,992
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Notes to the reconciliation from NZ GAAP to NZ IFRS

(a) Livestock

Livestock have been reclassified to Biological Assets at their fair market value as previously recognised in the financial 
statements.

(b) Property, plant and equipment

The forestry block at Puanga Station valued at $70,000 market value on 1 July 2006 has been transferred from Property, Plant 
and Equipment to Biological Assets.

Effect of NZ IFRS on the income statement for the financial year ended 30 June 2008.

Consolidated Group TRONP Parent Entity
NZ GAAP

$NZ’$000
Effect of

Transition
NZIFRS

NZ$’000
NZ GAAP

$NZ’$000
Effect of 

Transition
NZIFRS

NZ$’000
Revenue
Service delivery 3,705 - 3,705 3,705 - 3,705

Commercial trading operations 3,475 - 3,475 - - -

Rental income 97 - 97 137 - 137

Interest income 325 - 325 184 - 184

Other income 124 - 124 284 - 284
Total revenue 7,726 - 7,726 4,310 - 4,310

Expenses
Employee benefit expenses 2,224 - 2,224 1,668 - 1,668

Cost of sales from commercial trading 
operations 960 - 960 - - -

Depreciation and amortisation expense 213 - 213 123 - 123

Impairment of assets 83 - 83 - - -

Interest expense 114 - 114 - - -

Rental expense - - - -

Other expenses 3,986 - 3,986 2,492 - 2,492
Total expenses 7,580 - 7,580 4,283 - 4,283

Net operating profit/(loss) 146 - 146 26 - 26

There are no material adjustments to the balance sheet and income statements under previous GAAP following adoption of 
NZ IFRS except those outlined in note a to b above. The total revenue and total expenditure reported above for 30 June 2008 
differs to that reported in the previous audited financial statements as the commercial trading revenue has been grossed-up 
by the $960k reported above as cost of sales from commercial trading operations where previously these costs were netted-off 
against revenues.
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29. Subsequent events

Direct Negotiations of Historical Ngati Porou Treaty Claims
As reported last year, Te Haeata (Ngati Porou Treaty Settlements Hapu Sub-Committee) continued work with the Crown to 
reach an agreement on a comprehensive settlement package of all historic Ngati Porou Treaty claims. 

Negotiations continue and Te Haeata aims to have a draft Deed of Settlement negotiated with the Crown by the end of 2009, 
which will then be presented to Ngati Porou for ratification. 

Funding for the work of Te Haeata has been provided by the Crown Forestry Rental Trust (CFRT) and the Office of Treaty 
Settlements (OTS) and further funding has been negotiated for Phase Three of negotiations which continues post 30 June 
2009.

Renegotiation of Pakihiroa Farms Limited BNZ Banking Facilities

As disclosed in Note 18 and 20 on Borrowings, $700,000 of loan facilities were due to expire with the Bank of New Zealand (BNZ) 
on 12 October 2009. Pakihiroa Farms Limited has successfully renegotiated this facility with the BNZ as follows:

$600,000 interest only (7.29% fixed) repayments with a maturity date of 12 October 2011
$300,000 interest only (7.86% fixed) repayments with a maturity date of 12 October 2012
$200,000 interest only (9.95% fixed) repayments with a maturity date of 9 September 2023
$1.1 million of loans as at 5 November 2009 on top of a bank overdraft facility up to a maximum of $195,177 with an overdraft 
interest rate of 7.95% as at 30 June 2009.
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KAIHAUTU    Amohaere Houkamau, resigned January 2009
KAIHAUTU    Monty Soutar, appointed February 2009

SENIOR MANAGERS
Kaiwhakahaere Matauranga  Lilian Tangaere-Baldwin
Kaiwhakahaere Whanau Oranga  Anne Huriwai
Business Support Manager  Paul Thomas, appointed September 2008, resigned June 2009

CORPORATE SERVICES
Executive Assistant to the CEO & BOT  Anne Manuel, resigned February 2009
Executive Assistant to the CEO & BOT  Sarah Pohatu, appointed February 2009
BOT Secretary & PA to the Chairman  Albertha McFarlane (Fulltime)
Finance Administrator   Maud Johnson, deceased March 2009
Finance Officer   Rangiawhio Korau
Office Junior   Amber Wills, finished February 2009
Finance/Administration Officer  Makere Kaa, appointed March 2009
Finance/Administration Officer  Tracy Thompson, appointed April 2009
Receptionist Ruatoria   Isobel Solomon, transferred to Matauranga Kaiawhina July 2008
Receptionist Ruatoria   Hiraina Morice, appointed September 2008, resigned February 2009
Receptionist Ruatoria   Krysinthia Tangaere, appointed February 2009, resigned June 2009
Receptionist Porou Ariki   Nikorima Thatcher (Fulltime from May 09)
Receptionist Tuhono Whanau  Aperahama Molloy, resigned August 2008
Office Administrator   Cushla Albert, transferred from Budget Advisor August 2008
Cleaner Ruatoria   Philippa Tako
Cleaner Gisborne   Aaron Horsfield
IT Technician   Stanley Baldwin
Call Centre Operator   Ashley Johnson, appointed March 2009

MATAURANGA
ETER Strategy Manager   Karen Pewhairangi
Kaitautoko Matauranga   Leeanne Morice
Kaitautoko Matauranga   Jasmine Kaa, appointed February 2009
Project Coordinator   Hiria Shaw
Kaiawhina    Isobel Solomon, transferred from Receptionist July 2008
PAFT Coorindator   Tania Chaney, appointed August 2008
Hapu Cluster (2) Coordinator  Hikitai Green, appointed March 2009
Hapu Cluster (7) Coordinator  Mihi Kutia, appointed December 2008
Hapu Cluster (6) Coordinator  Mihi Matahiki, appointed March 2009
Hapu Cluster (1) Coordinator  Michelle Milner-Wanoa, appointed December 2008
Hapu Cluster (5) Coordinator  Nicola Tuala, appointed December 2008

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
Tourism Coordinator   Paora Brooking (also Youth Coordinator from November 2008)

WHANAU HAPU DEVELOPMENT
Whanau Services Manager  Huhana Tuhaka
Administrator Whanau Oranga  Josephine Tangaere, transferred to Kaiarahi September 2008
Kaiarahi    Josephine Tangaere, transferred from Administrator Whanau Oranga September 2008
Kaitataki    Riria Fox, transferred from Kaiawhina Whanau Support September 2008
Kaitataki    Robyn Smith (also Restorative Justice Coordinator from February 2009)
SupervisorFamily Start/tuhono Whanau Shona Samuels, transferred from Kaiawhina Family Start September 2008 
Kaiawhina Family Start/Tuhono Whanau Terendak Keelan
Kaiawhina Family Start/Tuhono Whanau Sonja Laga’aia
Kaiawhina Family Start/Tuhono Whanau Julliet Lardelli
Kaiawhina Family Start/Tuhono Whanau Arwen Sadlier, appointed January 2009
Kaiawhina Family Start/Tuhono Whanau Shona Samuels, transferred to Supervisor September 2008
Kaiawhina Family Start/Tuhono Whanau Ngawiki Te Kani
Kaiawhina Family Start/Tuhono Whanau Barbara Ryland, resigned May 2009
Kaiawhina Whanau Support  Aroha Shields, appointed March 2009
Strengthening Families Coordinator  Ruira Morice, resigned March 2009
Strengthening Families Coordinator  Stephanie McClutchie, appointed May 2009
Kaitohutohu   Katarina Porou
Budget Advisor Gisborne  Cushla Albert, transferred to Office Administrator August 2008
Budget Advisor Gisborne  Judith Kururangi, appointed September 2008
Budget Advisor East Coast  Frances Grant
Kaiawhina Whanau Support  Riria Fox, transferred to Kaitataki September 2008
Restorative Justice Coordinator  Robyn Smith, fulltime from November 2008 (also Kaitataki – Iwi Social Services from Feb 09)
Te Whae Atawhai/Truancy – Kaiti  Venice Thompson
Te Whae Atawhai/Truancy – Tolaga Bay Mary Anne Crawford
Te Whae Atawhai/Truancy – Ruatoria  Kuini Tuhura
Te Whae Atawhai/Truancy – Te Araroa Kathy Stainton, resigned October 2008
Kaiawhina Te Whae Atawhai – Te Araroa Marina Ngatai, appointed March 2009
Supervior – Te Whae Atawhai  Riripeti Halbert-Berry
Injury Prevention Kaitakawaenga  Leone Roberts
Injury Prevention Kaitakawaenga  Monty Manuel, transferred from Senior Finance Officer June 2009
Nutrtion Kaiawhina   Matekino Tuhura
Youth Coordinator   Paora Brooking, appointed November 2008
Housing Coordinator – Ruatoria  Heather Wanoa
Housing Coordinator – Ruatoria  Bobbi Morice, appointed September 2008, resigned February 2009
Housing Coordinator – Gisborne   Robyn Smith, transferred to fulltime Restorative Justice Coordinator November 2008

FSSB
Co-ordinator   Ruihana Paenga

Annual Report 2009

Staff Directory
1 July 2008 - 30 June 2009



The collection, storage and use of this information are subject to the Privacy Act 1993 and the runanga is required by the Maori Trust Boards Act to maintain a roll of 

Ngati Porou beneficiaries (Uri). The marae affiliation information only can be made available to marae for the purpose of establishing and or maintaining marae whanau 

databases, with your consent. (please circle)  YES  NO  

SECTION ONE: PERSONAL INFORMATION
MR  MRS MISS MS MASTER

SURNAME ....................................................................................................   MAIDEN NAME ...................................................................................................

FIRST NAME/S ..........................................................................................................................................................................................................................

POSTAL ADDRESS

..........................................................................................................

..........................................................................................................

..........................................................................................................

Phone (   )  .........................................................................................

Cellphone (  )  ....................................................................................

FOR TRONP OFFICE USE ONLY

Date Received:  .........................................

Date Entered:  ...........................................

Registration No:  .......................................

Entered by:  ....................................................

STREET ADDRESS (if different to postal address)

..........................................................................................................

..........................................................................................................

Fax (   )  ..............................................................................................

E:Mail ................................................................................................

Date of Birth        /       /

SECTION TWO:  ROHE  
I wish to affiliate in rohe (Please circle one only) 1 POTIKIRUA ki WAIAPU 2 WAIAPU ki TAWHITI  3 TAWHITI ki ROTOTAHE  4 ROTOTAHI ki TE TOKA A TAIAU 
 

SECTION THREE:  NGA MARAE O NGATI POROU 
My marae affiliations are (please circle as many as you affiliate to)

ROHE 1 Potikirua ki Waiapu ROHE II Waiapu ki Tawhiti
Potaka Tikapa
Hinemaurea (Wharekahika) Te Horo
Punaruku Waiomatatini
Tutua Kakariki
Hinerupe Reporua
Matahi o Te Tau Umuariki
Awatere Ruataupare
Hurae Mangahanea
Kaiwaka Uepohatu
Putaanga Rauru (Taumata o Mihi)
Rahui Ngati Porou (Kariaka)
Taumata o Tapuhi Mangarua (Te Heapera)
Hinepare Whareponga
Ohinewaiapu Te Aowera
Karuai Hiruharama
Tinatoka Rongo i Te Kai (Penu)
 Rongohaere
 Te Kiekie
 Taharora
 Iritekura

ROHE III (Tawhiti ki Rototahe)
Te Ariuru
Waiparapara
Pakirikiri
Tuatini
Hinetamatea 
Okuri
Hinemaurea (Mangatuna)
Puketawai
Te Rawheoro
Hauiti

ROHE IV (Rototahe ki Te Toka a Taiau)
Whangara
Te Poho o Rawiri

COROMANDEL- KENNEDY’S BAY
Rakairoa ki Harataunga

I.............................................................................................................. declare that the information given in this registration form  is 
true and correct and I am of Ngati Porou descent.

Signature ..........................................................................       Date .........................................

Please return registration forms to: Te Runanga o Ngati Porou, P O Box 394, Gisborne or P O Box 226,  Ruatoria.

OR register on line at www.ngatiporou.iwi.nz

Registration Form
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Keryn Goldsmith April PapuniPatrick TangaereDr Apirana Mahuika

ROHE ONE

Selwyn Parata Haro McIlroy

ROHE TWO

Heni Poutu Maria Whitehead Merearihi Whatuira

ROHE THREE

ROHE FOUR
Jean Weke

Bill Burdett

Dr Fiona Te Momo

Nolan Raihania

Lyn Harrison

Tate Pewhairangi

Peace Te Kani
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“Ko Porou koa, Ko Hamo te wahine koa”

Noho ana au i toku taumata kei Waiapu
Ka titiro ki te raki ki te tomokanga o toku kainga tupu

Ko pohatu whakatakataka kei Potikirua
Ko ona parirau kei tuawhenua ko te rarangi maunga o te Raukumara

Kei reira oku mauri tapu
Toku pa tuwatawata a Hikurangi.

Ki te rawhiti kei tua i te huka o te tai ki te hikumutu
Ko te tatau mai i te taonga kei Te Toka a Taiau

Ko tona tuanui ko Ranginui
Ko tona papa ko Papatuanuku.

Ko te iwi whai panga ki toku kainga tupu ko nga uri o nga hapu o Ngati Porou mai i Potikirua ki Te Toka a 
Taiau. 



  

Mana Motuhake Ngati Porou Nga Uri Whakatipu
Ngati Porou Self-Determining for the future


